"A Cammunify For All Seasons”

DIANE RATKOVICH

DEexTER TOWNSHIP &

STAMBOULELLIS
6880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY ROAD . C'“E‘:AK
ARIS METZ
DEXTER, Ml 48130 e
TELEPHONE: 734-426-3767 LAURA SANDERS
FAX: 734-426-3833 KAREN SIKKENGA
WWW.DEXTERTOWNSHIP.ORG KAREN NOLTE
TRUSTEES

10.

10.

11.
12.
13.
14.
15.

Board of Trustees — Meeting Agenda
21 September 2021 - 7:00 PM

Call to Order

Pledge of Allegiance

Motion to approve Michelle Stamboulellis as Chair for this Township Board meeting in the

absence of Supervisor Ratkovich. — Metz

Roll Call/Supervisor’'s Remarks / Conflict of Interest Check

1%t Call for Public Comment: The Board may entertain public comments on agenda items as

they come up for discussion.)

Approval of the Agenda

Approval of the Minutes

a. August 17, 2021 Regular Board Meeting

b. August 19, 2021 Special Meeting

c. September 8, 2021 Special Meeting

Reports (Oral presentation)

a. Woodhill Group — Colleen Coogan

b. Road Commission Report — Local Roads and Trail Planning —Sikkenga

c. Update on Dexter Township Clean-up Day and Recycling

Unfinished Business

a. Resolution to Approve Investment Policy as Approved by the Township Attorney —Metz

New Business

a. Resolution to Contract for Consultant to Update/Rewrite the Township Master Plan -
Sikkenga/Rohr

b. Resolution to Nominate a Trustee for the Term of September 21, 2021 until November
20, 2022.

c. Resolution to remove Jim Drolett from the Chelsea Area Construction Agency and as
Fence Viewer

d. Resolution to Increase Salaries of Township Staff

e. Introduction of Deputy Clerk (Resumes Attached) — Stamboulellis

Authorization of Payments / Transfer of Funds

a. General, Fire, Police, Fire Sub-Station, Multi-Lakes Enterprise & Agency Fund Payments —
Michelle Stamboulellis — Second run to be distributed at Board meeting

b. Transfer of Funds

2"4 Call for Public Comment

Other Issues, Comments and Concerns of Board Members & Staff

Future Agenda Items

Adjournment

The next regularly scheduled monthly meeting of the Dexter Township Board is:

Tuesday, October 19, 2021




Attachments — Township: NOTE: Listed items are attached to the packets for Board members and
posted on the Township website. Others can obtain copies of the reports by making a request to
Township staff.

Supervisor’s Report

Clerk’s Report

Treasurer’s Report — (No Report)

Trustees’ Report — (No Report)

Assessor’s Report — (No Report)

Director of Planning & Zoning Report / Zoning Board of Appeals Report — Approved
Minutes

Planning Commission Report — (No August meeting)

Personnel Policy Committee Report — (No report)

Open Space and Land Preservation Report — Approved Minutes
10. Dexter Township Senior Center Report

dUnhwWwNPRE

v ® N

Attachments — Other: Listed items are attached to the packets for Board members, and posted on
the Township website. Others can obtain copies of the reports by making a request to Township
staff, or to originating entity.

11. Chelsea Area Construction Agency (Draft Minutes)

12. Chelsea Area Fire Authority Report

13. Chelsea Area Planning/Dexter Area Regional Team Report
14. Chelsea District Library (Agenda & Minutes)

15. Dexter Area Fire Department

16. Dexter District Library (Minutes)

17. Huron River Watershed Council

18. Multi-Lakes Sewer Authority Report

19. Portage-Base Sewer Authority (Agenda)

20. Washtenaw Area Transportation Study (WATS) Report
21. Washtenaw Area Value Express (WAVE) Report

22. Washtenaw Broadband Initiative (Agenda)

23. Washtenaw County Road Commission (Agenda & Report)
24. Washtenaw County Sheriff Traffic Counts

25. Western Washtenaw Recycling Authority (Minutes)

The Dexter Township Board will provide necessary reasonable auxiliary aids and services, such as signers for the
hearing impaired and audio tapes of printed materials being considered at the meeting, to individuals with
disabilities at the meeting upon seven days’ notice to the Dexter Township Board.

Individuals with disabilities requiring auxiliary aids or services should contact the Dexter Township Board by
writing or calling the Office Manager at the address and phone number printed at the top of this agenda.




Diane Ratkovich

S isor ;"",__ -
wichetis stamboutetis  IDEXTER TOWNSHIP ——

Maﬁf’;‘: otz 6880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY RD. ¥ .‘ b :
Teasures DEXTER, M1 48130 o
James Drolett, (734) 426-3767 g ey
Karen Nolte, -
Laura Sanders, www.dextertownship.org
Karen Sikkenga,
Tustoes REGULAR MEETING OF THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD

TUESDAY, AuGcuUsT 17, 2021 7:00 PM
Location: 6880 Dexter Pinckney Road. Dexter TWP, Michigan. 48130

CALL to ORDER: Supervisor Ratkovich called the meeting to order at 7:00 PM.
PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE: Recited by all.

ROLL CALL: Present — Ratkovich, Stamboulellis, Metz, Sanders, Nolte, Drolett, and
Sikkenga.

Absent — None.
Also present: David Rohr, Director of Zoning and Planning, and Janis Miller,
Recording Secretary.
SUPERVISOR’S REMARK/CONFLICT OF INTERERST:
The new website went live on August 15", Diane will miss the September Bord meeting.
RFP for Master Plan Review consultant, one candidate interviewed. One more interview next
week. GFL trash haulers has withdrawn from pickup in parts of Livingston County and parts of
Dexter Township. GFL will have a roll off dumpster in the township parking lot for those whose
trash has been neglected by GFL.
The Portage, Base, and White Lakes Association invited Supervisor Ratkovich on a dam visit,
for an historical and educational tour of how the dam works on the Huron River.
No conflicts of interest.
Sikkenga asked for a change in the agenda before the 1st Call to the Public. She asked to switch
the 1% Call to the Public with the Approval of the Agenda as at the previous meeting there was a
discussion of striking the “Comment on items that are not on the agenda” note, so the public can
comment on any agenda item.

APPROVAL of the AGENDA:

Discussion: In Public Comment agenda item, removal of the “Comment on items that are not on
the agenda” instead to allow people to speak to anything that is on the agenda. Also, removal
of the “The Board will entertain public comments on agenda items as they come up for
discussion”. Engaging the public more than less by allowing public comments throughout the
agenda. Attorney Roberts stated that once the public comment time is over, it’s not typical to
engage the public in the discussion as that is the Board time to talk. Public is here to witness the
meeting, not participate in the discussion or debate of agenda items.

Motion by Sikkenga to approve the agenda, switching items 4 & 5 [for this meeting| and
changing Item 4: Call for Public Comment striking the comment in parentheses “Comment on
items that are not on the agenda” and changing the “will” to “may” in “The Board may entertain
public comments on agenda items as they come up for discussion”. Motion second by Nolte.
Addendum to motion is to add Agenda Item 9. e. Discussion of Lakes Projects re: Washtenaw
County Water Resources Commissioner, 9. f. Resolution to Rescind Resolution #21-600a, and 9.

T:\clerk1\My Documents\Minutes\Minutes2021\Draft Minutes 2021\Min 2021 08 17 Draft Regular Brd Mig.docx
Page 3 of 158



Draft Minutes of the Dexter Township Board August 17, 2021

g. Resolution to Rescind Frank Johnson as member of Open Space and Land Preservation
Committee and appoint Mark Teicher to the committee. Motion carried by veice vote.

13 CALL TO THE PUBLIC:

Deb Ceo, 13702 Aberdeen

She asked what Resolution #21-600a is.

Supervisor Ratkovich stated it was a resolution to set salaries, hourly wages, millage
reimbursement, and other compensation for Township employees who are paid by salary, at an
hourly rate and/or per-diem rate.

APPROVAL of the MINUTES;

Vote summary on F. and H. should be 6-1 each, not 6-0, .-

Motion by Sikkenga to approve the minutes of the July 20 2021 Board meeting as amended.
Motion second by Stamboulellis. Motion carried bv voice vote.

REPORTS (oral presentations): None.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS: None.

NEW BUSINESS: g g i
a) Approval of New Investment Procedmes and Investment Policy — Maris Metz
Updating procedures to adapt to Michigan Law and also .adding another layer of
accountability, either the Superv1sor or Clerk. Looking at different ways of investing the
township money by consolidating accounts and by doing a ‘cash flow analysis.
Discussion of short-term investments and Iong—term investments. Review of this policy
has not been compieted by Mark Roberts TOWI]Shlp Attorney.

Motion by S1kkenga to approve the New Investment Procedures and table the Investment
Policy until next month, after the Townshlp Attm ney has reviewed the Investment Policy.
_Motmn second. by Sanders !

RoII Call Vote: Yea—S|kkenga Sanders Stamboulellis, Metz, Nolte, Drolett, Ratkovich;
Nays—None Absent — None Motion carried 7-0.

b) Dexter Townshxp Ciean—Up Day(s) — Michelie Stamboulellis and Karen Nolte
Premise is to do Ciean-Up Day twice a year. Cost could be up to $7,500 dollars with part
of it reimbursed by the. County Department of Public Works. All types of recyclables
will be collected and tires will be collected free through a state grant to Washtenaw
County. A paper shredder [truck]| will be available for public disposal of documents.
Possibility of collecting a $5.00 donation per vehicle. The Community Initiative Fund in
the Township Budget will cover the costs.

Motion by Nolte to approve the first Clean-Up Day on October 30, 2021, with expenses
not to exceed $7,500, and authorizing Supervisor Ratkovich to sign the contract with

Allshred Services. Motion second by Stamboulellis.

Roll Call Vote: Yea — Drolett, Nolte, Metz, Stamboulellis, Sanders, Sikkenga, Ratkovich;

Thelerk I'iy Documents\Minutes\Minules202 '\Draft Minutes 202 1\in 2021 08 17 Draft Repular Brd Mig.docx

Page 4 of 158



Draft Minutes of the Dexter Township Board August 17, 2021

d)

None;

Nays — None; Absent —None. Motion carried 7-0.

Update on Trails and Roads — Karen Sikkenga

Discussion: Getting a financial plan in place to upgrade the local roads to good condition
within a timeframe. Focus should be on local connector roads. Local roads are used by
the people who live on the road and their guests. Another category is local connector
roads which everyone uses to get from one place to another, with most Township roads
falling under this category. Possibility of forming a Townships Consortium, to all work
together on the local roads, and together present new and innovative approaches to the
County Road Commission. Trail update: new trail is labeled Northwest Passage which
will connect Hudson Mills to the northwest corner of Dexter Township. This trail will go
down Stinchfield Woods Road, through Pmckney R crea‘uon and then up through Hell,
Michigan. 'y

Social Media — Michelle Stamboulellis .. =
Discussion: How to communicate with the residents. Towns p Facebook page is not the
official site/page of the township. Facebook page should have comments turned off in
order to just let residents know what is gomg If they want to comment they should send
their comments and questions to Dexter Townshlp lnf .org, email, or attend a meeting.
There is a need for a vehicle to talk to the reszdents Linking new social media to the new
Township website. Guidance: nee C tO post and parameters for posting.

Discussion of Lakes Projects re: Washte' w-'County Water Resources Commissioner
Discussion: Theo. Eggermont, Washtenaw County-Publlc Works Director, wanted Dexter
Township to be aware there are three lake projects that are coming up in 2022. They will
be doing a Spec1al Assessment District on each lake so residents that have deeded access
to the lake pay for treatment of invasive Weeds

Resolutlon to: Rescmd R olutlon #21 600a

,Discussmn Executive team is lookmg at Staff and salary changes. Michigan Townships
“Association (MTA) stated it 1s tequired the Board of Trustees approve salaries for elected

ofﬁ(:lals but it is not reqmred or standard, that the whole Board set staff salaries.
Currently the township is working with the Woodhill Group to professionalize township
business’ prac‘uces espec"':lly around finances and administration.

8:35 pm Jlm Drolett sub 1ts his resignation from the Dexter Township Board of
Trustees. .

Motion by Sikkenga o approve Resolution #21-625 [number will be added later]
rescinding Resolution #21-600a and adding; be it further resolved that the Township will
retain the Woodhill Group through a budget calendar year. Motion second by Nolte.

Roll Call Vote: Yea — Sikkenga, Sanders, Stamboulellis, Metz, Nolte, Ratkovich; Nays —

Absent — Drolett. Motion carried 6-0.

TAclerk 1\My Docomentsivinutesivinutes2021\Drafl Minutes 262 5\in 2621 08 |7 Draft Regutes Hird Mtg docx

Page 5 of 158



Draft Minutes of the Dexter Township Board August 17, 2021

g) Resolution to Rescind Frank Johnson as member of Open Space and Land Preservation
Comumittee and appoint Mark Teicher to the committee.
Discussion: Frank Johnson is interested and still wants to be involved but he is not
available for meetings on a regular basis. Mark Teicher is an activist, has lived in the
township many years, he is an attorney, has served on the Watershed Council, and he is
President of the Portage and Base Lakes Association.
Motion by Sanders to withdraw Frank Johnson as a committee member and appoint Mark
Teichert to the Open Space and Land Preservation Committee. Motion second by
Stamboulellis.

Roll Call Vote: Yea — Nolte, Metz, Stamboulellis, Sand_e_rs",_f_Sikkenga, Ratkovich; Nays —
None;

Absent — Drolett. Motion carried 6-0,

AUTHORIZATION of PAYMENTS/TRAN SFER of FUNDS Treasurer Metz

Motion by Metz to transfer funds and authorize payment in the amounts of: August gross payroll
$32,121.48, General Fund $57,909.12, Fire Fund $74,022.43, Police Fund $40,764.99, and
Agency Fund $5,059.00, Grand total is $209,877: 02 Mouon second by Nolte

Roll Call Vote: Yea — Sikkenga, Sande_rs"-'Stamboulelhs No[te IVIetz Ratkovich; Nays—None
Absent - Drolett. Motion carried 6-0; " = e

UNFINISHED BUSINESS'_ None.

2nd CALL TO THE PUBLIC None

FUTURE AGENDA ITEMS None

Motion by Nolte to adjourn M0t1on second by Metz Motion carried by voice vote.
The meetmg was d]ourned at 8:5 1pm '

Respectfully Sme_it_ted,

Michelle Stambouieilss Cierk
Dexter Township '

1, THE UNDERSIGNED, MICHELLE STAMBOULELLIS, THE DULY QUALIFIED CLERK FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER, WASHTENAW COUNTY,
MICHIGAN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FORGOING IS A TRUE AND COMPLETE COPY OF CERTAIN PROCEEDINGS TAKEN BY THE DEXTER
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 1 7TH DAY OF AUGUST 2021 AND THAT THE FORGOING MINUTES ARE
THE DRAFT MINUTES FOR THE MEETING HELD ON THE 17TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2021,

MICHELLE STAMBOULELLIS, CLERK, DEXTER TOWNSHIP

Thclerk [YMy DocumentstMi \Minutes?02 1\Draft Mi 2021\Min 2021 08 17 Draft Reputar Brd Mig.docx

Page 6 of 158



Diane Ratkovich

z & isor
| vienet 2eisor . DEXTER TOWNSHIP

" arci'iejl\ﬁ otz 6880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY RD.
Treasurer DEXTER, Mi 48130
James Drolett, (734) 426-3767
Karen Nolte,
Laura Sanders, www.dextertownship.or
Karen Sikkenga,
Trustees SPECIAL NMEETING OF THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD

TUESDAY, AuGcusT 19, 2021 8:00 PM
Location: 6880 Dexter Pinckaey Road. Dexter TWP, Michigan. 48130
Supervisor Ratkovich was not present for the beginning of the Board of Trustees Special Meeting
Trustee Sikkenga made a Motion to appoint Clerk Stamboulellis to facilitate the meeting.
Motion second by Treasurer Metz.
Vote — Voice Call Yeas - Stamboulellis, Metz, Nolie, Sanders, Sikkenga
Nays - None. Motion carried 5-0.
CALL to ORDER: Clerk Stamboulellis called the meeting to order at 8:03 PM.
ROLL CALYL: Present - Stamboulellis, Metz, Sanders, Nolte, and Sikkenga.
Absent — Diane Ratkovich, Jim Drolett
APPROVAL of the AGENDA:
Agenda was approved unanimously with no amendments. Motion earried by voice vote,
| 1% CALL TO THE PUBLIC: \
: No membeis of the public spoke.
: NEW BUSINESS:
Discuss and vote to accept the resignation of Jim Drolett, effective August 29, 2021
Trustee Nolte made the motion Treasurer Metz seconded the motion.
Roll Call Vote: Yea — Sikkenga, Sanders, Stamboulellis, Metz, Nolte;
Nays — None; Absent — Diane Ratkovich, Jim Drolett. Motion carried 5-0.
Supervisor Ratkovich joined the meeting at 8:10pm
DISCUSSION:
Attorney Mark Roberts stated that Jim Drolett will remain a Trustee until August 29, Until that
time, he is bound by his oath of office. Mr. Roberts stated that we have until October 4, 2021 to
appoint a replacement.
Trustee Sikkenga asked whether Mr. Drolett’s term at the Chelsea Area Construction Agency
would terminate automatically as a result of his termination as Trustee. Mr. Robetts stated that
he will research the terms of the CACA. appointment and report back to the Board of Trustees.
Trustee Sikkenga asked whether the Trustee position would continue only until the mid-term
election. Trustee Metz stated that MTA representatives told her that the new Trustee’s term
would continue for the full length of Mr. Drolett’s vacated office, Mr. Roberts stated that he
would research and report back to the Board of Trustees on the length of the new appointee’s
ferm.
2nd CALL TO THE PUBLIC: None.
Motion by Sikkenga to adjourn. Motion second by Metz. Motion carried by voice vote.
The meeting was adjourned at 8:17pm.

Respectfully Submitted,

Michelle Stamboulellis, Clerk
Dexter Township

Thcerk\Wy DocusnemtsiinnlesMinutes202 \Min 2021 03 19 Regular Brd iy docx
Page 7 of 158



Draft Minutes of the Dexter Township Board August 19, 2021

I, THE UNBERSIGNED, MICHELLE STAMBOULELLIS, THE DULY QUALIFIED CLERK FOR THE TOWNSHI* OF DEXTER, WASHTENAW COUNTY,
MiIcHIGAN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FORGOING IS A TRUE AND COMPLETE COPY OF CERTAIN PROCEEDINGS TAKEN BY THE DEXTER
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 197TH DAY OF AUGUST 202 [ AND THAT THE FORGOING MINUTES ARE
THE DRAFT MINUTES FOR THE MEBTING HELD ON THE 19TH DAY OF AUGUST, 2021,

MICHELLE STAMBOULELLIS, CLERK, DEXTER TOWNSHIP

Thderd My D W \Minutes2021\Min 202) 68 19 Regular Brd Mug.docx

Page 8 of 158



Diane Ratkovich

vicno aisor s DEXTER TOWNSHIP

Clerk
Maris Metz 6880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY RD.
Treasurer DEXTER, M1 48130
James Drolett, (734) 426-3767
Karen Nolte,
Laura Sanders, www.dextertownship.org

Karen Sikkenga,

Trustees

CALL to ORDER: Supervisor Ratkovich called the meeting

SPECIAL VIEETING OF THE DEXTER TOWNSHIP BOARD

WEDNESDAY SEPTEMBER 8, 2021 6:00 PM
Location: 6880 Dexter Pinckney Road. Dexter TWP, Michigan. 48130

rder at 6:00 PM.

PLEDGE of ALLEGIANCE: Recited by all.

Sanders, Sikkenga

ROLL CALL: Present — Ratkovich, Stamboulellis, Meiz;No
Absent — None. Also present: Janis Miller, Recording S I
1% CALL TO THE, PUBLIC: No public com :

APPROVAL of the AGENDA:

Motion by Nolte to approve the agenda as pre
Motion carried with voice vote.

ed. Motion second by Sikkenga.

DISCUSSION/ACTION:

A,

pploval 2022-2023
ar 2023-2025 Planning. Motion

Approval of the Calendar for '

Motion by Nolte to approve t
second Metz.

Roll Calt Vote: Yea Sanders, Ratkovich;

In a group interview tiing, eac  candidate was asked the following questions: 1) What
made yoli.apply for this position? 2) What do you see as the most critical issues for the
Township Boa1d7 3) What experience do you bting to the table to support this work? 4)
What do youhave to contribute as a member of the Dexter Township Governing Board?
and 5) The Dext ship Board of Trustees is scheduling a Strategic Planning Board
Retreat for two days the first week of October. Will you be able to attend?

Appointment of a new Dexter Township Trustee will be made at the September 21, 2021
Township Board Meeting.

Approval of a Proposal for Strategic Planning Facilitator

Supervisor Ratkovich interviewed both advisory groups that submitted proposals. Board
discussion as to available dates for Strategic Planning and which company to hire to
facilitate the meeting,

Motion by Nolte to hire Place + Main Advisors to run the strategic meeting on the 1oth
and 111 of October, for Dexter Township. Motion second by Sanders.

Motion earried with voice vote,

2nd CALL TO THE PUBLIC: No public comments.

TAclerk \My Doc \linustesviinules202 \Dralt Minutes 2021%is 2021 09 08 Dralt Regufar Brd Mig,doox

Page 9 of 158



Draft Minutes of the Dexter Township Board September 8, 2021

OTHER ISSUES, COMMENTS and CONCERNS of BOARD MEMBERS & STAFF:
None,

ADJOURNMENT:
Motion by Nolte to adjourn. Motion second by Metz. Motion carried with voice vote.

The meeting was adjourned at 7:20 PM,

Respectfully Submitted,

Michelle Stamboulellis, Clerk
Dexter Township

[, THE UNDERSIGNED, MICHELLE STAMBOULELLIS, THE DULY QUALIFIED CLERK FOR THE TOWNSHIP OF DEXTER, WASHTENAW COUNTY,
MICHIGAN, DO HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE FORGOING IS A TRUE AND COMPLETE COPY OF CERTAIN PROCEEDINGS TAKEN BY THE DEXTER
TOWNSHIP BOARD OF TRUSTEES AT A REGULAR BOARD MEETING HELD ON THE 8TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER 2021 AND THAT THE FORGOING MINUTES
ARE THE DRAFT MINUTES FOR THE MEETING HELD ON THE 8TH DAY OF SEPTEMBER, 2021,

MICHELLE STAMBOULELLIS, CLERK, DEXTER TOWNSHIP

Tielerk ['\My DocumentsiMinutestiviinutes2021\Draft Minutes 2021 in 2021 0908 Draht Regutar Brd Mig.docx

Page 10 of 158



LoD H L



THE WoOODHILL GROUP

29488 WOODWARD AVE, STE 298, ROYAL OAK, Ml 48073

HG

ACCOUNTING. BETTER.

To: Board of Trustees, Dexter Township
From: Colleen M. Coogan
Date: September 13, 2021

Re:  WoodHill Group Health Check for Dexter Township

WoodHill’s service agreement includes a health check to the governing body. The objective of
the health check is to review the deliverables to date and report to the Board the status of
operations in the accounting and finance functions. Below is a table summarizing the status of

the deliverables.

entry practices and financial reporting and

expanding use of financial software

DELIVERABLE COMMENTS PERCENT
COMPLETE

Prepare an investment strategy with the Investment Policy and Investment 75%
Treasurer including a cash flow analysis, Procedures documents delivered on
streamlining of investment options, template | July 20, 2021. Board approved
for state required investment report to board, | Investment Procedures in August.
review of investment policy. Board approving Investment Policy at

September meeting. Cash Flow

Analysis, Rate Analysis, and

Investment Capacities delivered on

Aug 18, 2021. Investment Strategies

and Board Report to follow Board

approval of Investment Policy.
Preparation of federal and state compliance Delivery Date Sept 30, 2021 0%
reporting deadlines for existing activities.
Provide a gap analysis of existing financial Delivery Date Oct 31, 2021 0%
policies
Review the budget process and document for | Process reviewed/objectives agreed to 5%
best practices with Supervisor. Township will

prepare a 3-year budget which

supports long term strategic

objectives. Calendar complete and

approved by board.
Review BS&A financial program set up, data | Significant efficiencies achieved in 90%

#
e —— e o e

The WoodHill Group
info@woodhillgrp.com

Accounting. Better

www.woodhillgrp.com
Page 11 of 158




make recommendations to improve and simplifying processes.
effectiveness and efficiency where needed Treasurer’s office completed set up of

Cash Receipts and Del Pers Prop Tax

Programs
Review Treasurer tax collection and Eliminated duplicate recordkeeping on 95%
disbursement process including interface with | excel and financial software
the general ledger and make customized for Deputy Treasurer
recommendations to improve effectiveness disbursement requirements.
and efficiency where needed
Provide other resources and support as Ongoing NA
requested

Overall, the accounting and finance procedures that exist in the office are outdated resulting in
duplication of effort and a waste of Township resources — both labor resources and supply
resources. Over the last decade, this has cost the taxpayers tens of thousands of dollars. Two
examples of improved processes are attached to this Health Check report.

WoodHill has worked with the Officers to increase the internal controls on cash receipting,
streamline other accounting processes to reduce redundancy and waste, and train the staff on
using the functions in the financial software suite.

It is likely the existing processes were a combination of three factors:

1. Adherence to outdated, likely inherited, manual processes that were labor intensive and
required a large amount of duplicate and triplicate paperwork — the majority of which
have no record retention value.

2. Lack of understanding of internal controls. Staff incorrectly uses the term internal
controls to support the processes. The COSO internal control cube is attached to this
report. COSO is a nationwide commission charged with generating a standardized
internal control framework to help entities design and implement internal controls.
COSO recommendations form the benchmark and best practice handbook for internal
controls.

3. Lack of comfort with technology. Many of the steps taken by the staff will be eliminated
with proper use of the financial resource software system and creating a comprehensive
shared electronic filing system.

Discussions with officers have also addressed the nation-wide, human resource problems of
attracting and retaining talented employees.

The WoodHill Group Accounting. Better

info@woodhillgrp.com www.woodhillgrp.com
Page 12 of 158




8G1 0 ¢| abed

w o2 did|[Iypoom - mmm
131139 ‘Sununodoy

WoD dIS[|IYPOOM @ Ol
dnoup |IHpooM @yl

owlaw ay3 ol Jaquinu yuwuad ay3
SI9jud Hels ‘snpow s3disday ysed
ay1 Suisn weiSoud a1em1os |elOUBUL
v9S9 2y} ojul JuawAied ayz Jajud
Aj1eipawwi pue JuswAed ay3 anidal
JHB1S 43[40 J3UNSEDU | 10 3010 Ju0.4

9q p|NOYS suawasingsip pue sydiadal

yse) :Z# Aouapiyaq [043U0) [BUIaIU|
"juawAed ay3 s3199[]00 oym uosiad ayy

3( 10U p|NOYS anuaAaJ 3y} jo ,Suisieyd, syl
S|OJ3U0D OYM UOSIdd *Sa1anq Jo uoneledas

Jooe] T Aduspiaq [041U0) [EUIaU] *J3WO03ISND 3y} WoJ) ¥2ayd ayl sidadde zdyla €

‘3n0ge 335 "98uey) oN

"panssi syw.ad |[e Jo piodaJ luauewad
B S| UOIIBWLIOMUI [32X3 SIY] “IUSWNIop
[99X2 UB U] HwJiad palaquinu S|yl SIa3ua Zdyid T

‘wesSoud Suimiwiad ayy umo
19A 10u soop diysumo] -s8uey) oN

‘junowie

39} UOWWOI B S 00'08S @9y e1endosdde ay)

S9UIWUIR1ap pue jwuad iaded pasagwnu e 1no
S|4 (Zd¥1Q) Buluoz pue Sujuue|d J0 40133410 T

§5320Hd d3ISIAIY

SAIDNIIDI443NI SSFD0Ud B
S3IDN3DI43d TOHLNOD

S$S300dd DNILSIX3

‘d3Li3g "ONILLNNODDY

"33 LINY3d 08$ IDVHIAV NV DNIAIFITY HO4 SSID0Ud d3LS 9T :MIIATY SSID0Ud 1

so|dwex3y om] — saduey) ssad0.d
diysumo] J91xaq 404 329YD yeaH dnoun |IHPOOM 9y
T20C ‘€T 4oquwieldas :91e(Q
ue3oo0) "I\ ua3||0) :wod4
diysumo] Ja1xa( ‘seaisnu] Jo pieog 0]

€L08F I VO TYACY ‘86¢ Z1S ‘HAY Q¥VMAOOM 88162

dNOds) TIIHAOOAA AH 1




861 40 v| abed

wod dig|Iypoom - mmm
121129 "Suiunodny

wod dis||[lypoom@)ojul
dnoup [IHpoom ayL

*PIs0|2 SI JaMEeIP YSED 3y Sl 3y}
1e di|s 11sodsp auo Ul paulquod aJe
1unodde jueq 3|3uls e o1 syusodap ||V

“J40M Alessadauun st Syl "eanuaaal Jo sadA)
1uaJaylp 4oy} sdijs usodap a1eiedas pasinbal
saunpadoid usnum ay| IGH AdUapIau]

sjueq o3 dijs ysodap |[enplAlpul
Sy} Sa) e} Jaunsead] ‘saunsl 7dd ayl Ajuo
Joy dijs usodap aiesedas e Ino S|y Jainseal] g

paleuiwi|3 dais

“Jainseal]

3yl Aq pa||043U00 UOIIBIO] BUO Ul 3¢ P|NOYS
so|14 1d192a4 yse) "s9jiy 1d19231 ysed Jo 135S
puT B BUlUlRIUIRW SI ZdHIQ TTF AdUsPIFaU

Adoo 1d122au Jainseasy ay3 s9|i Zdyld '8

paleuiwi 3 dais

-Adod uoqgued aya

pue Jaunseal] ayl yum [euislio ayl ‘zdyid
33 01 auo — yusodap Apjaam ayy Joy sidiaaal
Ysed £ Mou aJe 243y "Wwa)sAs |eDUBUL

3U] Ul 10U |[13S SI e1EP pUR palelauad 1d1adal
|enuew puodas 3yl si Syl g Adusnigau]

Zddld

2y3 Joy 1d1s234 ysed sy jo Adoooloyd e saxew

pue podas Apj@am 3yl uo Junowe 3yl Yyim
1d192a1 ysed e Ino sa3um Ajjlenuew Jaunseal] /

pajeuiwi|y dais

“Jiodau

Ap2am 51yl Jo sa1dod ¢ mou ale alay]
"Adoo e sdaay pue Jaunseal] ayl 01 Adod

e pue 3.u3)2 ay1 01 Adod e sSuliq 74Y1qQ TH
AouspRaU] ‘Mmainal Jaquinu Hwuad ay3 Jo
|0J1U0D papaau a3yl 3|puey 10U S0P 133YS
Modau Apj@am ay) asneaaq pauaddey pey
SIY1 MOU3 10U P|NOM 3J3|D pue Jainseal]
ay1 pue Ajjeuossad Asuow ayy deay pue
1wuiad e anssi pinod zdyia -1diszal ay3 0}
1Xau Jaquinu jwJiad 3yl 15| 10u saop uodal
Apjeam sy p# Aduaniaq [043U0) [BUIaIU]

}49[0 9y3 01 Adod e sanI8 pue Jainseal]
3y1 01 123ys Hodal [22xa Apjaam ayl pue
syuswAed pa3d3)|00 ||e sSulig ZdYIa ‘Apleap 9

pajeuiw|3 dais

UOI3BWIIOMI anuaAad 1waad
Jo Buipiodal a1edndng TT# Aduaniyau]

193ys 1odau |9axa ‘Apjaam ‘s1esedas
B UO UOIJBWIOJUI NUSARI BY3 SI21UB ZdYId 'S

po1euiwi|g dais

s)sap asAo|dws [enpialpul 1B p|ay
2 10U p|noys s1d1eday ‘pJengajes yse)
ladosdw| g Aduspiaq [0J3u0) [BUI3IU|

"}33M B 10}
$2J031S pUB ¥Sap sIy 01 323yd ay3 sSuuq zdyla 't

*Ado2 1diaoau

paziaindwod e S3AI9J3U JaWOISN)
*I3MBIp ysed ayi oaul Ind si JuawAied
“JuawAed ay3 Suipiodal uaym aul|

BUEINENEE
[BIDUBUL} BY] Ul papJ0daJ Aja1elpawiwi




851 Jo G| abed

wod dig|jlypoom-mmm
Ja119g "8ununody

wo dIs|[Iypoom@ oJul
dnouip |IHpPooMm aYL

‘pauledxa aJe siaquunu
1wuad Suissiw Aue pue jeuanbas
aJe s1aquinu pwJiad wWauod 0}
Jainseal] ayl Aq pamaiaal Ajeaipouad
3q ||IMm Wa3sAs ayl wouy suodad "sassazoud |oJ3u0)
aNUIAI YWD ~da1S SullolUON [euJaiu| ||e ul da1s papaau e s] SULIOJIUOIA| LT
‘pajuy ‘wof 1d19aau ysed
Apeauje si 1eyy dijs usodap 03 ojul |euiSLIO pue jsodap yueq pajiy Ajsnoiaaad ayl yim
"paieulwi|3 dais sayoelle Jaunseal] OoT# AdUspigau] | 1iodau Apjaam zdQ pauanial syl sajiy Jaunsead] "ot
"J3INnseal] 2y 01 yoeq
peleuiwi|j dais “domiaded jo sajsueil-ay T6# 193yspeauds Apjeam zd4@ ay3 sudnial J3[D ‘ST
"3010 S 432 9y3 ul spodau Apj9am zdad
paleulwi3 dais 's3|14 21e21|dnQ 8§ ASuapIfau] pue jisodap jyueq 1di1s0a1 ysed ayy sa|y Y430 ¥T
"paniadal aiam siuswAhed
Y1 Yo1ym JoJ siaquinu yuniad ayjy Jaus
10U S30p INq Jaquinu 1d1323a4 S J34nNseau ]
ay31 Suisn uonewJloul Y3 siajus “W2ISAS 94BMOS [BIDUBULY
paleuiwi|3 dais }43[D iGH Aduspijeq [0J3u0) [BUIaIU] V18S9 21 Ul SNUSA3J 3Y] SISJUI 3210 S MIJ|D €T
"Pas0|2 pue pa|1nuolal
SI Jamelp Ysed ay} awil Auans walsAs
ay1 Aq paresauas podal ydisdal
B 3pnaul [|im 1eyl susodap ysed jo 1d19234 yueq
S3|1} UlBUIBW O] SSNUIIUOD J134NSeal] pue 1d1923. ysed [eu18lI0 3y} S3|i} JaUnseal] ‘7T
S,34nseald] a3yl pue 7zdy|d 3yl —
S1USWINJOP |32X3 OM] U] PJ3JUa uaaq Mou
Sey anuanaJd ay] siadedydom 1ipne ayi jo "papJodal
Hed 3 s1 1o Suiuodal [eldueUlY Byl JayuL Ul | SI ANAILOR Ysed Ajiep ||B 213ym JusWnI0op [99X3
paieuiwi g dais pasn 10u SI 193ys |92Xa 8yl T/# AdUspiau] ue ojul ysodap yses ay3 splodal Jainseal] TT
*ss2204d 2y} ui 3di9das Apjeam ayl 43[0 03 uaAId
10 s31dod  MOU aJe auay ] ‘WIISAs [eIDURUL aJe asayl ‘Modas Apjeam zd4@ sy 01 1disdal
31 ul papJ0odal 10U [[135 UOIIRWIOLUL ysed ay1 jo Adoo uogued ayi snjd syuawnaop
pue Jayloue 03 32110 U0 wodf yiomiaded Z @Y1 9|deis pue 1di132aJ ysed |enuew ay3
paleurwi|g dais 10 J3jsueld] BAISSBIXT 19F Aduanijau] pue 1di22aJ yueq ayu3 saidosoloyd Jainsead] QT




8G| 0 g1 abed

woo dig|Iypoom mmm wod dJ3|[IlypoOM@ OJul
Ja332g "Suinunoly dnoup [jIHpoOM BYL
*S92140 uaamiaq yJomiaded Jo Jajsuel]l pue 431D 2yl 01 Adod ay3
paieuiwi3 dais yiomuaded Alessaosuun # AUSDIHSU] | SaAIS pue SJUWRIRIS yueq |e saidod Jaunseal] ‘9

‘e1ep 1eyl 9|12u0dal

0} papa3au Adod Jaded ou s] 343yl Juawalels
a1 uo AjinIoe Ajuo 3yl SI SWOIUI 3SII3UI
1U92 Tt uaym — 3jdwexs 404 "Suljouodal
yum sdjay Adoa juid e usym asoyl

*uoI1BIO| paleys e ul sl juld Ajuo pue paaes ag p|noys S1U3WaI1ELS ‘|le siuld pue
JIU0J103|3 UIBUIR|A| "pP2pPaau Se lulld Nueq jo s91d0d 21u0J1I3|7 (EF ADUSDIYAU] | S1USWS1R1S JUBQ JIUOIIIB|3 S9AI9Da) Jainseal] g
‘weidoid 1d1aoay
ysed ay3 y3noaya sjerpueuly ay W1SAs 24eM0S [BI2URULY
01 Aj12341p 150d MOU [|IM UOIIBWIOHU] 9yl 01Ul UonBWLIOJU] 1ISOdap [|B SJ91Ua YJI3]D ¥

"1N2 3Je S22 Y} PUB ‘PAISIUD B SII0AUI
2Y3 SWi1 9yl 1B 3|npow aiemyos s|qehed
SIUN02JY 33 YSnouyi waisAs |eiaueuly ayi ul
a8uey) oN 1UnodJoe ysed oy} 03 paisod ale syuswAed ysen g
22130e4d 353 B 10U S
pue ssa2oud ypne Jo Sujpodal [eloueUL 3yl

Jay1le ul pasn 10U S| Jeyl pJodad a1edndnp suawAed pue sysodsp ||
pajeulw|3 dsas ‘Bullinsuod-awi} e sI SIY] g Aduspigau] 10 p1023J 199YS |9IX3 Uk SulejulBW JaJnseal] ¢
RI[JIE
21e21|dnp s| Wa3sAs 31BMOS [BIDUBUL
3y} o1u] Aj3oadip wiayl Suipiodsu Jo peslsul ~00q 1d19234 Yysed pajaquinu
paleujwig dais s1d120a1 BuipJodal pueH T AduaRIgau] | ‘usliumpuey e ul s3diadal ||e SpJodald Jadnseal] T
S$S300dd d3sIATd SAJN3I2143a ADN3IDI443NI ANV TOHLNOD SS3004d DNILSIX3

(Sundiadau ysed ul swa|qo.d jo43u0d ay3 03 deads Jou seop malnad siyl)
"SININIFLVLS INVE 40 ONITIINOIIY ANV SIILIAILIY HSVI 40 ONIAY0I3Y :M3IATY SS3I00ud il




851 J0 /| abed

wod dig|Iypoom mmm
J21199 *Sununoloy

W00 dI5[IypOOM ® OJUl
dnoup ||IHpoom ayL

paleuiwi3 dais

S1SIXS UOI1BWIOUI JO WISAS 31BM0S
|BIOUBULY PRJRYS B USYM SIUNOIJE YUueq
10 Bul1pUoda. S1edNdNg TZF Aduspau]

1Uno2Je YUueq YIea J0} pauleiulew
2J9m 1ey3 ANAIDE YSeDd JO s3I} [99X3 ay]
01 S1UW1E]S YUe(Q 3Y) SI|IDU0IBJ JBINSEI ]

"T20T ‘0€ aunr jo se
Wa1sAs 31eMOs [BIoUBUL BY3 Ul 3UOp
Suraq aJe suollelouoIAI Yueq ||V

uolje|[lauodal

3y} pawopad oym pue uodau
uoIlel[1ou0Ia] 3y} JO pJ0d3li Jusueuriad

B sulejuiew pue asn o1 a|dwis sl 1ey3
sse204d Uollel|IouodaL yueq e sey WalsAs
9yl "walsAs aiemyos [eloUBULY Y3 UL
PapJ023l SI UoIleWIOUI [ 19F AdUSPIjau]

Ajjenuew
1USWIS1RIS queq YIBa S3|12U03a4 43D

paleulwl|3 daig

1d13234 [euonippe

UE JO UOI1B3.D 1NOYHM SIUSWIIEIS 3yl

30 Aj303.1p papJodaJ aq UEd awoaul 1SaJa3u|
"J3UUBLL SIY] Ul BWOJU] 153431Ul pJoJal
01>Jom Alessaoauun si 3 G Aduapau]

34310 ay3 01 1d19234 ay3 jo Adod e sanid
PUE S1USWS1E.1S jUueq 9y} UO AWOIU] 3S3Ud]U]
10§ 1d19234 Ud11IM-pUBY B SB1B8JD Jainseal ]

L

"papasu
SE UOI1BWLIOUI SSS00B UBD [|B PpUB ‘paAes aq
PINOYS S1UaWa)e)s yueq Jo sa1dod J1u0J1d3|3




DEXTER TOWNSHIP
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

£

MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees Meeting — 21 September 2021

Agenda ltem Title:
Report on Local Roads Planning and Trail Planning

Recommended by:

Karen Sikkenga, Trustee

Explanation of Agenda ltem:
Quick update on the initiation of Local Roads Planning with WCRC, as well as the kick-off meeting for the NW

Passage Trail project.

Fiscal or Resource Considerations: Yes No X
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds? Yes No X
If yes, are funds budgeted? Yes No X
Are staff or other resources required? Yes No X
Is a budget amendment required? Yes No X

Attachments: 1 page written update to be provided by Friday.

Staff Comments:

Motion/Action/Recommendation;
none

T:A\Supervisor\Township Board\Board Packets\Board Packet Documents\2021\2021 09 21\Agenda Summaries\Sikkenga Road Update.docx

Page 21 of 158




DEXTER TOWNSHIP
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees Meeting — 21 September 2021

Agenda Item Title:

Update on Dexter Township Clean-Up Day and Recycling

Recommended by:

Nolt€

Karen STRRENES & Michelle Stamboulellis

Explanation of Agenda Item:

[
Update by Michelle Stamboulellis and Karen !ﬂl!g&'bf the Dexter Township Clean-Up Day and other
recycling in the Township.

Fiscal or Resource Considerations: Yes No X
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds? Yes No X
If yes, are funds budgeted? Yes No X
Are staff or other resources required? Yes No X
Is a budget amendment required? Yes No X
Attachments:

Staff Comments:

Motion/Action/Recommendation:

None

T:\Supervisor\Township Board\Board Packets\Board Packet Documents\2021\2021 09 21\Agenda Summaries\Update on Clean Up Day.docx

Page 23 of 158



DEXTER TOWNSHIP
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Mv T qppfmfe,
Investment Policy Apuawe

Recommended by;

Maris Metz

Explanation of Agenda item:

The new investment policy was reviewed and approved by our attorney, Mark Roberts of Secrest Wardle,
after making a small change. Please see the email attached and the change made in the first sentence of the
document.

Fiscal or Resource Considerations: Yes No X
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds? Yes No X
If yes, are funds budgeted? Yes No

Are staff or other resources required? 7 Yes No X
Is a budget amendment required? Yes No X
Attachments:

tdited investment policy and email from attorney Mark Roberts

Staff Comments:

Motion/Action/Recommendation:

Page 25 of 158




From: Roberts, Mark <mroberts@secrestwardle.com>

Sent: Tuesday, August 31, 2021 11:09 AM

To: Maris Metz <treasurer@dextertownship.org>

Cc: Supervisor <supervisor@dextertownship.org>

Subject: RE: Personal Property Inquiry and Investment Policy

Ms. Metz, | have reviewed the draft investment policy and find it is consistent with Chapter 129 of state
law. In reaching this conclusion, | am deferring your financial consultant’s expertise for the specific types
of investments listed under the “Authorized Investments and Transactions” section of the policy. | have
only one correction to the policy, which involves the first sentence of the policy statement. Chapter 42 is
the state Charter Township Act, inapplicable to Dexter Township, a General Law Township. Thus, |

recommend replacing the first sentence with the following:

Dexter Township, Michigan (“the Township”) is a general law township operating under state law,

Chapter 41 (Townships) of Michigan Compiled Laws.
Let me know if you need anything further, Mark.

SECREST

SW

WARDLE

Mark S. Roberts

Attorney at Law

2600 Troy Center Drive | P.O. Box 5025 | Troy, MI 48007-5025
Direct: (248) 539-2815

Office: (248) 851-9500 x 2511

Fax: (248) 251-1806

mroberts@secrestwardle.com

www.secrestwardle.com

Page 27 of 158



DEXTER TOWNSHIP

INVESTMENT POLICY

Township Board of Trustees Resolution XXXX
Adopted XXXX

Page 29 of 158



Dexter Township, Michigan

Investment Policy

Overview

Dexter Township, Michigan (“the Township”) is a general law township operating under
state law, Chapter 41 (Townships) of Michigan Complied Laws. The Township
functions under the direction of a Township Supervisor who is an elected official and a
member of the seven-member Township Board of Trustees. The purpose of this
Investment Policy is to establish the investment scope, objectives, delegation of
authority, standards of prudence, eligible investments and transactions, internal
controls, reporting requirements, and safekeeping and custodial procedures necessary
for the investment of the funds of Dexter Township.

This Investment Policy has been adopted by resolution of the Township Board of
Trustees of Dexter Township, Michigan and replaces all previous investment policies or
resolutions concerning the cash management or investment of Township funds.

The Township manages a flexible investment portfolio, which may include general
operating funds, bond reserve funds, proceeds from bond sales that will be expended
on capital projects as well as various other funds. Because these funds may be
required at any time, it is essential that the Township maintain strict maturity horizons
for the purpose of liquidity control.

Policy
It is the policy of Dexter Township to invest public funds in a manner which will provide

the highest investment return with the maximum security while meeting the daily cash
flow demands of the Township and conforming to Michigan Public Act 20 of 1943.

Scope
This Investment Policy applies to the financial assets of all Township funds, except for

its employee pension funds and its employee deferred compensation funds which are
organized and administered separately. Except for cash in certain restricted and special
funds, the Township shall consolidate cash balances from all funds to maximize

Page 31 of 158



investment earnings and to increase efficiencies with regard to investment pricing,
safekeeping and administration. Investment income shall be allocated to the various
funds based on their respective participation and in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles.

[nvestment Objectives

The Township’s funds shall be invested in accordance with all applicable Township
policies, State statutes, and Federal regulations, and in a manner designed to
accomplish the following objectives, which are listed in priority order:

. Safety. Preservation of capital and protection of investment principal

. Liguidity: Maintenance of sufficient liquidity to meet anticipated disbursements
and cash flows

o . Yield: Aftainment of a market rate of return equal to or higher than the
performance measure recommended by the Treasurer and approved by the
Supervisor.

Prudence and Indemnification

The standard of prudence to be used in managing the Township’s assets is the “prudent
investor” rule which states, “Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under
circumstances then prevailing, which persons of prudence, discretion and intelligence
exercise in the management of their own affairs, not for speculation, but for investment
considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the probable income to be
derived.” The Township’s overall investment program shall be designed and managed
with a degree of professionalism that is worthy of the public trust. The Township shall
recognize that no investment is without risk and that the investment activities of the
Township are a matter of public record. Accordingly, the Township recognizes that
occasional measured losses may occur in a diversified portfolio and shall be considered
within the context of the overall portfolio’s return, provided that adequate diversification
has been implemented and that the sale of a security before maturity can be in the best
long-term interest of the Township.

Personnel acting in accordance with this Investment Policy and written procedures, and
exercising due diligence, shall be relieved of personal responsibility for an individual
security’s credit risk or market price change, or other.

Delegation of Authority

The ultimate responsibility and authority for the investment of all Township funds
resides with the Board of Trustees. The Board of Trustees may delegate the authority
to conduct investment transactions and to manage the operation of the investment
portfolio to other specifically authorized persons. The Treasurer and Deputy Treasurer
are authorized to transact investment business on behalf of the Township.

Subject to required procurement procedures, the Township may engage the support
services of outside professionals in regard to its financial program, so long as it can be
demonstrated that these services produce a net financial advantage or necessary

Page 32 of 158



financial protection of the Township's resources. Such services may include
engagement of financial advisors in conjunction with debt issuance, portfolio
management, special legal representation, third party custodial services, and appraisals
by independent rating services.

Investment Procedures

The Treasurer shall establish written administrative procedures for the operation of the
Township’s investment program as well as internal controls, which shall include explicit
delegation of authority to personnel responsible for investment transactions. The
procedures shall be designed to prevent losses of public funds arising from fraud,
employee error, misrepresentation by third parties, or imprudent actions by employees
and officers of the Township.

Ethics and Conflicts of Interest

All Township employees involved in the investment process shall refrain from personal
business activity that could conflict with proper execution of the investment program or
which could impair, or create the appearance of an impairment of, their ability to make
impartial investment decisions. Employees and Officials shall disclose to the Board of
Trustees any material equity interests in financial institutions that conduct business with
the Township and they shall subordinate their personal investment transactions to those
of the Township. Failure to report these relationships may be grounds for discipline, up
to and including termination. Employees and Officials shall comply with all applicable
laws, regulations, professional codes of responsibilities and Township policies.

Selection of Banks

The Treasurer shall maintain a list of banks and savings banks authorized to provide
depository and other banking services and from which the Township may purchase
Time Certificates of Deposit. To be authorized, a bank must be eligible to be a
depository of funds belonging to the State of Michigan and maintain a principal office or
branch office in Michigan. Banks that fail to meet this criteria, or in the judgment of the
Treasurer no longer offer adequate safety to the Township, will be removed from the
list.

Selection of Broket/Dealers

The Treasurer shall maintain a list of broker/dealers authorized to conduct security
transactions with the Township. To be eligible, a firm must meet at least one of the
following criteria:

1. Be recognized as a Primary Dealer by the Federal Reserve Bank of New York or
have a primary dealer within their holding company structure; or

2. Report voluntarily to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York; or

3. Qualify under Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) Rule 15¢3-1 (Uniform
Net Capital Rule).

Page 33 of 158



In addition, each broker/dealer must complete and annually update a Township
approved Broker/Dealer Information Request Form, and submit the firm’s most recent
financial statements.

Broker/dealers will be selected on the basis of their expertise in public cash
management and their ability to provide services for the Township's account. Approved
broker/dealers and firms they represent must be licensed to do business in the State of
Michigan and as such are subject to the provisions of Michigan Statutes relating to the
investment of public funds.

Per Section 129.96 of Michigan’s Act 20 of 1943, before an order to purchase or trade
the funds of the Township, a financial intermediary, broker, or dealer shall be provided
with a copy of this investment policy and shall do both of the following:

A.  Acknowledge receipt of the investment policy.

B. Agree to comply with the terms of the investment policy regarding the buying or
selling of securities.

Alternatively, if the Township has engaged the services of an investment advisory firm,
the authorized Investment Advisor may utilize the Investment Advisor's list of
broker/dealers when executing transactions on behalf of the Township, provided that
each broker/dealer meets the minimum criteria listed above in items 1 — 3 of this
section. The Investment Advisor's approved list of broker/dealers shall be provided to
the Township on an annual basis or upon request. In addition, the authorized
Investment Advisor shall provide a written receipt of this Investment Policy and agree to
conduct transactions on behalf of the Township in accordance with this Investment
Policy. The authorized Investment Advisor shall provide such certification on an annual
basis or upon any revision to this Investment Policy.

Authorized Investments and Transactions

All investments for the Township shall be made in accordance with Michigan State
statutes: Act 20 of 1943 as amended, M.C.L. 129.91-129.96, Investment of Surplus
Funds of Political Subdivisions, and Act 40 of 1932 as amended, M.C.L. 129.12,
Depositories for Public Moneys.

The Township has further delineated the types of securities and transactions eligible for
use by the Township as foilows:

1. U.S. Treasury Obligations: United States Treasury Bills, Treasury Notes, Treasury
Bonds, and Treasury Strips with maturities not exceeding ten years from the date of
trade settlement. There is no limit on the percentage of the portfolio that may be
invested in these obligations.

2. Federal Agency Securities: Debentures and mortgage-backed securities with a
stated final maturity not exceeding seven years from the date of trade settlement.

Page 34 of 158



Investments in Federal Agency Securities shall not exceed 10% of the Township’s
investment portfolio.

. Federal Instrumentality Securities: Debentures, discount notes, step-up and callable

securities with a final maturity not exceeding seven years from the date of trade
settlement. Investments in Federal Instrumentality Securities shall not exceed 50%
of the Township’s investment portfolio, and no more than 30% of the Township’s
investment portfolio may be invested in any one issuer of federal instrumentality
securities.

. Time Certificates of Deposit with a maturity not exceeding five years, and issued by

state or federally chartered banks or savings banks as defined in M.C.L. 129.16,
“Depositories for Public Money”, that are eligible to be a depository of funds for the
State of Michigan, and Certificates of Deposit that are purchased in accordance with
M.C.L. 129.91 guidelines. There is no limit on the percentage of the portfolio that
may be invested in these obligations. However, no more than $300,000 of the
Township's investment portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.

. Obligations of the State of Michigan or any of its political subdivisions with a final

maturity not exceeding five years from the date of trade settlement, that are rated at
least A- or the equivalent with a stable or positive rating outlook by at least one
nationally recognized statistical rating organization (NRSRO). Investments in such
obligations shall not exceed 10% of the Township’s investment portfolio and no more
than 5% of the Township’s investment portfolio may be invested in any one issuer.
Diversification and credit criteria described for obligations of the State of Michigan
are not applicable to issues of Dexter Township.

. Prime Commercial Paper with an original maturity of 270 days or less which is rated

A-1 or the equivalent at the time of purchase by not less than two NRSROs. If the
commercial paper issuer has senior debt outstanding, the senior debt must be rated
A or the equivalent by not less than two of those rating services. Investments in
commercial paper shall not exceed 25% of the Township’s investment portfolio and
no more than 5% of the Township’s investment portfolio may be invested in any one
issuer.

. Repurchase Agreements with a termination date of 90 days or less collateralized by

U.S. Treasury Obligations or Federal Instrumentality Securities listed in 1 and 3
above with maturities not exceeding ten years.

Collateralization: For the purpose of this section, the term “collateral” shall mean
“ourchased securities” under the terms of the Township approved Master
Repurchase Agreement. The collateral shall have an original minimum market value
(including accrued interest) of 102% of the dollar value of the transaction and the
collateral maintenance leve! shall be 101%. If collateralized value drops below 101
percent, it will immediately be restored to 102%. Collateral shall be held by the
Township’s custodial bank as safekeeping agent, and the market value of the

Page 35 of 158



collateral securities shall be marked to the market daily based on that day’s bid
price. The right of collateral substitution is granted.

Master Repurchase Agreement: Repurchase Agreements shall be entered into only
with primary dealers reporting to the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or with
firms that have a primary dealer within their holding company structure or with
approved depository banks that have executed an approved Master Repurchase
Agreement with the Township. The Treasurer shall maintain a copy of the
Township's approved Master Repurchase Agreement along with a list of the
counterparties who have executed a Master Repurchase Agreement with the
Township.

There is no limit on the percentage of the portfalio that may be invested in
repurchase agreements.

Money Market Mutual Funds registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940
that are “no-load” (i.e., no commission or fee shall be charged on purchases or sales
of shares); have a constant daily net asset value per share of $1.00; limit assets of
the fund to securities authorized in M.C.L. 129.91 as legal investments for a public
corporation; have a maximum stated maturity in accordance with Rule 2a-7 of the
Investment Company Act of 1940; and are rated either AAAm or the equivalent. The
Treasurer shall pre-approve each Money Market Fund before purchase. Investments
in money market mutual funds shall not exceed 30% of the Township’s investment
portfolio.

Investment Pools organized under Act 367 of 1982, MCL 129.111 to MCL 129.118,
Surplus Funds Investment Pool Act, that are “no-load”; have a constant daily net
asset value per share of $1.00; and limit assets of the fund to securities authorized
in M.C.L. 129.91 as legal investments for a public corporation. Investments in
investment pools shall not exceed 10% of the Township's investment portfolio.

10. Joint Interlocal Investment Ventures organized under the Urban Cooperation Act of

11.

1967, 1967 (Ex Sess) PA7, M.C.L. 124.501 to 124.512 that are “no-load” have a
constant net asset value per share of $1.00; and limit assets of the fund to securities
authorized in M.C.L. 129.91 as legal investments for municipalities; and are rated
either AAAm by Standard and Poor’s, Aaa by Moody’s or AAAV1+ by Fitch. Not
more than 50% of the Township’s total portfolio may be invested in investment pooils
at any one time.

Local Government Investment Pools organized under Section 4 of Public Act 121 of
1985, the Local Government Investment Pool Act. Not more than 10% of the
Township’s total portfolio may be invested in these pools at any one time.

It is the intent of the Township that the foregoing list of authorized securities be strictly
interpreted. Any deviation from this list must be pre-approved by the Board of Trustees
in writing.

Page 36 of 158



Securities that have been downgraded to a level that is below the minimum ratings
described herein may be sold or held at the Township’s discretion. The portfolio will be
brought back into compliance with [nvestment Policy guidelines as soon as is practical.

Collateralization of Deposits

The State of Michigan does not require collateralization of all public funds. See
Authorized Investments and Transactions, above, for repurchase agreement
collateralization requirements.

Safekeeping and Custody

The Township Board of Trustees shall designate one or more financial institutions to
provide safekeeping and custodial services for the Township. A Township approved
Safekeeping Agreement shall be executed with each custodian bank prior to utilizing
that bank’s safekeeping services. To be eligible for designation as the Township's
safekeeping and custodian bank, a financial institution shall meet the criteria described
in the Selection of Banks section of this Investment Policy.

Custodian banks will be selected on the basis of their ability to provide services for the
Township’s account and the competitive pricing of their safekeeping related services.

The purchase and sale of securities and repurchase agreement transactions shall be
settled on a delivery versus payment basis. Ownership of all securities shail be
perfected in the name of the Township. Sufficient evidence to title shall be consistent
with modern investment, banking and commercial practices.

All Township owned securities, except Certificates of Deposit, Investment Pools, and
Money Market Mutual Funds, will be delivered by book entry and will be held in third-
party safekeeping by a Township approved custodian bank, its correspondent bank or
the Depository Trust Company (DTC).

Investment Diversification

It is the intent of the Township to diversify the investments within its portfolio to avoid
incurring unreasonable risks inherent in over investing in specific instruments, individual
financial institutions or maturities. The asset allocation in the portfolio should, however,
be flexible depending upon the outlook for the economy, the securities market, and the
Township's anticipated cash flow needs.

There is no limit on the percentage of the portfolio that may be invested in U.S.
Treasury Obligations, Time Certificates of Deposit, and Repurchase Agreements.
However, no more than 30% of the total portfolio shall be invested in any one issuer of
Federal [nstrumentality Securities. No more than 5% of the total porifolio shall be
invested in any one issuer of commercial paper, or obligations of the State of Michigan
or any of its political subdivisions. Exposure to certificates of deposit is limited to no
more than $300,000 per issuer.

Page 37 of 158



No more than 25% of the total portfolio shall be invested in securities with maturities
exceeding five years. No more than 12.5% of the total portfolio shall be invested in
securities with maturities exceeding seven- and one-half years.

Other investments shall not exceed the following limits in each of the categories listed
below as a percentage of the total portfolio.

50% in Joint Interlocal Investment Ventures

50% in Federal Instrumentality Securities

30% in Money Market Mutual Funds

25% in Prime Commercial Paper

10% in Federal Agency Securities

10% in Obligations of the State of Michigan or any of its political subdivisions
10% in Investment Pools

10% in Local Government Investment Pools

Tax funds collected on behalf of taxing authorities including the Township and held
pending disbursement are not subject to the diversification limits above.

Portfolio Maturities and Liguidity

To the extent possible, the Township’s investments shall be matched with anticipated
cash flow requirements. Unless matched to a specific cash flow liability and approved
by the Board of Trustees in writing the Township will not invest in securities maturing
more than ten years from the date of trade settlement, and the weighted average final
maturity of the portfolio shall not exceed 5 years.

The Township recognizes that bond proceeds may, from time to time, be subject to
provisions of the Tax Reform Act of 1986, Federal Arbitrage Regulations, as amended.
Due to the legal complexities of arbitrage law and the necessary immunization of vield
levels to correspond to anticipated cash flow schedules, the reinvestment of such debt
iIssuance may, upon the advice of Bond Counsel or financial advisors, deviate from the
maturity limitation provisions of this Investment Policy with prior written approval of the
Board of Trustees. In all cases, however, types of eligible investments will be in
compliance with this Investment Policy. This paragraph is only applicable to Township
funds subject to arbitrage calculations.

Competitive Transactions

Each investment shall be competitively transacted with authorized broker/dealers.
Whenever possible, at least three broker/dealers shall be contacted and their bid and
offering prices shall be recorded.

If the Township is offered a security for which there is no other readily available
competitive offering, then quotations for comparable or alternative securities shall be
documented.

Transactions executed by the Township's investment advisor shall be conducted on a
competitive basis as described in this section.

Page 38 of 158



Internal Confrols
An external auditor shall independently review the Township’s investment activities on
an annual basis. This procedure will assure compliance with policies and procedures.

Performance

The benchmark yield shall be equal to the average yield on the U.S. Treasury Security
that most closely corresponds to the portfolio’s actual weighted average maturity. When
comparing the performance of the Township’s portfolio, the reported rate of return shalll
include both average weighted yield and rate of return net of fees.

Reporting
The Treasurer shall prepare a quarterly investment report summarizing the investments

held by the Township and the current market value of those investments. The report
shall include a summary of investment earnings and performance results during the
period, illustrate the portfolio’s adherence to appropriate risk levels utilizing appropriate
metrics like maturity or duration depending on the investment strategy of the portfolio,
and compare the portfolio’s total return versus established investment objectives and
goals including performance relative to established benchmark yields. The quarterly
investment report shall be submiited in a timely manner to the Township Board of
Trustees.

The Township has established reporting and accounting standards for callable U.S.
Instrumentality securities. Callable securities may be retired at the issuer's option prior
to the stated maximum maturity. All securities holding reports for the Township shall
disclose the stated maturity as well as the first call date of each callable security held.
For callable securities which are purchased priced to the first call date and have an
overwhelming probability of being called on the first call date, weighted average maturity
as well as yield shall be calculated using the first call date. Authorized investment
personnel may, however, choose to use a further call date or maturity date for reporting
purposes when conditions mandate.

Policy Revisions
The Treasurer shall review this Investment Policy annually, and amend it as conditions
warrant, subject to approval by Township Board of Trustees.

Page 39 of 158



GLOSSARY

Bankers Acceptance (BA): A draft or bill or exchange accepted by a bank or trust
company. The accepting institution guarantees payment of the bill, as well as the
issuer.

Broker: A broker brings buyers and sellers together for a commission paid by the
initiator of the transaction or by both sides.

Callable Bond: A bond issue in which all or part of its outstanding principal amount
may be redeemed before maturity by the issuer under specified conditions.

Certificate of Deposit: A time deposit with a specific maturity evidenced by a
certificate. Large denomination CDs are typically negotiabie.

Collateral: Securities or property pledged by a borrower to secure payment.

Commercial Paper: An unsecured promissory note with a fixed maturity of no more
than 270 days. Commercial paper is normally sold at a discount from face value.

Dealer: A dealer, as opposed to a broker, acts as a principal in all transactions, buying
and selling for his/her own account.

Debenture: A bond secured only by the general credit of the issuer.

Delivery Versus Payment: There are two methods of delivery of securities: delivery
versus payment and delivery versus receipt (also called free). Delivery versus payment
is delivery of securities with an exchange of money for the securities. Delivery versus
receipt is delivery of securities with an exchange of a signed receipt for the securities.

Discount Securities: Non-interest-bearing money market instruments that are issued
at a discount and redeemed at maturity for full face value.

Diversification: Dividing investment funds among a variety of securities offering
independent returns.

Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC): A federal agency that insures bank
and savings bank deposits.

Federal Funds Rate: The rate of interest at which Fed funds are traded. The Federal
Reserve currently pegs this rate through open-market operations.

Fed Wire: A computer system linking member banks and other financial institutions to

the Fed, used for making inter-bank payments of Fed funds and for making deliveries of
and payments for Treasury, agency and book-entry mortgage-backed securities.

Page 40 of 158



Investment Adviser's Act: Legislation passed by Congress in 1940 that requires all
investment advisers to register with the Securities and Exchange Commission. The Act
is designed to protect the public from fraud or misrepresentation by investment
advisers.

Liquidity: A liquid asset is one that can be converted easily and rapidly into cash
without a substantial loss of value.

Local Government Investment Pool: A pool of funds authorized under the laws of the
State that receives deposits from one or more local units and pays returns based upon
each local unit's share of investment in the pool.

Mark-to-market: The process whereby the book value or collateral value of a security
is adjusted to reflect its current market value.

Market Value: Current market price of a security.

Master Repurchase Agreement: A written contract covering all future transactions
between the parties to repurchase or reverse repurchase agreements that establish
each party’s rights in the transactions. A master agreement will often specify, among
other things, the right of the buyer-lender to liquidate the underlying securities in the
event of default by the seller-borrower.

Maturity: The date upon which the principal or stated value of an investment becomes
due and payabie.

Money Market Mutual Fund: A mutual fund that limits its investments to some or all
types of money market instruments.

Net Asset Value: The market value of one share of an investment company, such as a
mutual fund.

No Load Fund: A mutual fund that does not levy a sales charge on the purchase or
sale of its shares.

NRSRO: Nationally Recognized Statistical Rating Organizations - organizations that
issue credit ratings for securities.

Portfolio: Collection of securities held by an investor.

Primary Dealer: A group of government securities dealers who submit daily reports of
market activity and positions and monthly financial statements to the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York and are subject to its informal oversight. Primary dealers include
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) registered securities broker/dealers,
banks, and a few unregulated firms.

Page 41 of 158



Prudent Person Rule: Standard of investing which states that investments shall be
made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, which persons of
prudence, discretion and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs,
not for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as
well as the probable income to be derived.

Rate of Return: The yield obtainable on a security based on its purchase price or its
current market price. This may be the amortized vyield to maturity on a bond or the
current income return.

Ratings: An evaluation of an issuer of securities by Moody’s, Standard & Poor’s, Fitch,
or other rating services of a security’s credit worthiness.

Repurchase Agreements: A transaction whereby a holder of securities sells securities
to an investor with an agreement to repurchase them at a fixed price on a fixed date.
The security “buyer” in effect lends the “selier” money for the period of the agreement,
and the terms of the agreement are structured to compensate the buyer. Dealers use
repurchase agreements extensively to finance their positions.

Rule 2a-7 of the Investment Company Act of 1940: Applies to all money market
mutual funds and mandates such funds to maintain certain standards, including a 13-
month maturity limit a 90-day average maturity on investments and maintenance of a
constant net asset value of one dollar ($1.00).

Safekeeping: Holding of assets (e.g., securities) by a financial institution.

Treasury Bills: A non-interest-bearing discount security issued by the U.S. Treasury to
finance the national debt. Treasury Bills are issued with maturities ranging from a few
days to 26 weeks.

Treasury Bonds: Long-term U.S. Treasury securities having initial maturities of more
than ten years.

Treasury Notes: Intermediate term coupon bearing U.S. Treasury securities having
initial maturities of from one to ten years.

Yield: The rate of annual income return on an investment, expressed as a percentage.

Page 42 of 158



DEXTER TOWNSHIP
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

4
B i

MEETING OF: Township Board of Trustees Meeting — 21 September 2021

Agenda ltem Title:
Contract for Consultant to Update/Rewrite the Township Master Plan

Recommended by:
Karen Sikkenga, Trustee
David Rohr, Director of Zoning and Planning

Explanation of Agenda ltem:
Request for Board approval to enter into a contract for a consultant to work with the Township to update/rewrite the
Dexter Township Master Plan.

The master plan selection committee recommends hiring Beckett & Raeder, at a cost of S60K, to conduct Dexter
Township’s master plan. Becket & Raeder offered the most comprehensive public engagement and a review &
recommendations of the Zoning Ordinance in scope for the project, on a 15-month timeline. B&R is an award-winning,
Washtenaw County based firm with master plan experience in townships similar to ours.

The selection committee included Marty Straub, Chair of the Planning Commission, Diane Ratkovich, Supervisor, Karen
sikkenga, Trustee Representative to the Planning Commission, and David Rohr, Director of Planning & Zoning.

Updating the master plan is a statutory responsibility of Michigan townships.

Currently $20,000 budgeted. This includes a budget amendment of $40,000 from General Fund, Planning Commission,
Line ltem 294.801.005

Fiscal or Resource Considerations: Yes X No
Does this agenda item require the expenditure of funds? Yes X No
if yes, are funds hudgeted? Yes X No
Are staff or other resources required? Yes X No
Is a budget amendment required? Yes X No
Attachments:

Staff Comments:

Motion/Action/Recommendation:

Motion to approve the Master Plan consultant contract with Beckett & Raeder and to authorize the
Township Supervisor to execute the contract on behalf of the Township Board.

T:\Supervisor\Township Board\Board Packets\Board Packet Documents\2021,2021 03 21\Agenda Summaries\Master Plan - Sikkenga.docx

Page 43 of 158



Dexter Township Resolution # 21-627

A resolution to Hire Beckett & Raeder to update the Master Plan for Dexter Township.

WHEREAS, Dexter Township is recommending Beckett & Raeder to consult, update and conduct
Dexter Township’s Master Plan for Dexter Township; and

WHEREAS, Dexter Township recommends hiring Beckett & Raeder, at a cost of $60K, their firm
offered the most comprehensive public engagement and a review and recommendations of the
Zoning Ordinance in scope of for the project which is on a 15-month timeline. Beckett & Raeder
is an award-winning, Washtenaw County Based firm with master plan experience in townships
similar to ours; and

WHEREAS, Dexter Township has selected a committee whom includes Marty Straub (Chair of
the Planning Commission), Diane Ratkovich (Supervisor), Karen Sikkenga (Trustee and
Representative to the Planning Commission) and David Rohr (Director of Planning & Zoning) for
Dexter Township, and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED THAT the Dexter Township Board, by a vote of the
majority at a regularly scheduled and duly noticed meeting held this 21° day of September, 2021,
gives authorization to Supervisor Ratkovich to sign letter of engagement with Beckett & Raeder,
for Dexter Township, to begin the process to consult, update and conduet the Master Plan for
Dexter Township at a cost of $60K.

Resolution offered by:

Resolution seconded by:

Roll call vote:

Yeas:

Nays:

Abstain: None

Absent: None

Tally Y = ; N =; Abstain = 0; Absent =0

The Supervisor declared the resolution adopted.

CERTIFICATE

The undersigned, being the duly elected and acting Clerk of the Township of Dexter hereby certifies that the
foregoing resolution was duly adopted at a regular meeting of the Dexter Township Board at which a quorum was
present on the 21* day of September, 2021, and that the members voted thereon as hereinbefore set forth.

Michelle Stamboulellis, Clerk



DexTER TOWNSHIP

G880 DEXTER-PINCKNEY ROAD
DEXTER, Ml 48130

TELEPHONE: 734-426-3767
Fax: 734-426-3833

WWW DEXTERTOWMNSHIP.ORG

/i

: ) %
ity For aAff Seasons”

Page 45 of 158



Introduction

Dexter Township, MI is requesting proposals from qualified consultants to assist the community in
creating a new Master Plan. The Township is seeking a consultant to develop a visionary master plan,
based on comprehensive public engagement. The Township will accept proposals until 4:00 p.m. on
July 22, 2021.

Community Overview

Dexter Township is approximately 33 square miles in area and is mostly rural. The major north/south
access into the Township is Dexter-Pinckney Road, with North Territorial Road as the major east/west
access. There are no freeways, freeway interchanges, highways, or rail lines located within Dexter
Township.

One of Dexter Township’s most appealing features is its abundance of lakes, recreational land, and
agricultural areas. These attributes have attracted residential growth, which was steady in the 1990s
and early 2000s. The Township has several well-established residential subdivisions, resort
communities, and proposals for additional single-family residential developments. The primary factor
affecting growth in the Township is the availability of land, and its proximity and accessibility to Ann
Arbor and the rest of the Southeast Michigan employment centers.

Staff

The Dexter Township Director of Planning & Zoning will serve as the point of contact for the Township.
The Township anticipates that members of the Township’s Planning Commission and Township Board
will play roles in the process by guiding and supporting the project through a series of public updates,
discussions, and public engagement opportunities.

Township Master Plan

Dexter Township utilizes a Master Plan adopted in 2011. The Dexter Township Planning Commission
completed a review of the Master Plan in 2019 and found no major changes or additions necessary at
that time. The Master Plan review process will begin again after the 2020 US Census data becomes

available. http://www.dextertownship.org/BoardCommission/PlanningCommission/MasterPlan.aspx

Page 47 of 158



Plan Objectives

1. Conduct in-depth public engagement to gather input from residents, businesses and
property owners, Township Board, Planning Commission and administrative staff, such as
design charettes, community-wide survey(s), town hall meetings, focus groups, social
media engagement etc,

2. Review current Township Master Plan to identify deficiencies and elements that should be
incorporated into the new plan.

3. Incorporate current planning documents where relevant: 2011 Master Plan and 2020 Zoning
Ordinance.

4. Create a vision for what Dexter Township will look like in the future, including clear direction
of how and where development/re-development should occur over the next5, 10, 15, and
20 years.

5. Evaluate existing goals and objectives, explore implications of aging population, consider
change in public opinion, review land use designations, and address regional changes.

6. Determine a specific implementation plan for immediate, short- and long-term goals.

Scope of Work

With assistance from Township Staff, the selected consultant will conduct a review and rewrite of the
2011 Master Plan. The consultant will develop a final deliverable that should include the following:

e Drafting the Document: The consultant will prepare the Draft Master Plan, including
graphics, for review by staff and the Planning Commission, culminating in a final version to be
acted upon by the Township Planning Commission and the Township Board of Trustees.

¢ Summary sheet: The consultant shall provide a summary sheet detailing all changes/additions to the
draft Master Plan.

¢ Plan Sections: The Draft Master Plan should include similar chapter Headings as the 2011 Plan
(Planning Issues and Trends, Social Characteristics, etc..).

¢ User-Friendly Format: The consultant will work with Township staff as well as its information
technology vendors to make the new Master Plan is accessible to the public. Simplifying and
clarifying as mush as possible where necessary. Hyperlinks in electronic version preferred.

¢ Updated Maps: The consultant will provide updated land use maps similar to the maps in
2011 Master Plan.

¢ Project Schedule: The consultant provides the Township an anticipated schedule and timeline
for the above work.

Page 48 of 158



Selection Criteria

| The Selection Committee shall select finalists from the complete proposals received before the
| deadline. The Township may ask finalists to present their proposals in person before final selection.
Evaluating past project submissions and consideration of the proposed time line are some of the criteria
the selection committee will consider.

Proposal Requirements

Proposals should contain the following information:
1. Letter of Interest — Cover letter indicating interest in the project and identifying the firm’s
ability to provide services needed.

2. Introduction — A brief description of the firm including the number of years the firm has been
in existence, range of professional services, office locations, and staff size.

3. Work Program — In the project overview, describe the general project approach and process
to be employed, describe a process approach that was used in the past to successfully
complete similar projects, describe the proposed project schedule including timeline of
major milestones, deliverables, and completion.

4. Experience and Qualifications — A brief description of the firm’s prior work relevant to this
RFP including the name, address, and phone number of client references and the primary
contact persons.

\ 5. Consultant Personnel — Identify individuals from the firm’s professionals and other who will
| work on the project along with a brief summary of the individual and their experience.

6. List of Clients — Provide a list of comparable clients for which similar services have be provided
in addition to contact information.

7. Timeframe Flow Chart — Submit a flow chart with estimated project timeframe for
meeting important project targets.

8. Estimated Costs — Submit cost estimates for each task associated with preparation of the
Master Plan and overall completion.

Inquiries
All requests for clarifications or interpretations shall be made in writing and shall be emailed to
| dpz@dextertownship.org. Inquiries shall contain the firm’s name, contact person, email address and
fax number and be titled "“Draft Master Plan — RFP.” Deadline for inquiries is July 7, 2021 @ 4:00 pm
EST.

Page 49 of 158



Proposals Due

Applicants shall submit proposals and projected costs in separate documents. Electronic proposals will
be accepted until July 22, 2021 @ 4:00 PM EST. Proposals must be submitted to
dpz@dextertownship.org Applicants shall also submit five paper copies of the proposal to:

Dexter Township Master Plan-RFP
6880 Dexter Pinckney
Dexter, MI 48130

Submittal and Schedule

1. Submit all required materials as detailed in the Proposal Content and Selection Process
sections on the following pages. Include one (1) unbound original, five (5) bound copies,
and one (1) disc or one (1) flash-drive containing an electronic copy in pdf format.

2. Submit proposal no later than 4:00 p.m. July 22,2021 in a sealed package clearly marked as
indicated:

COMPANY/FIRM NAME
“PROPOSAL 2021
UPDATE AND REWRITE
DEXTER TOWNSHIP MASTER PLAN
DEXTER TOWNSHIP, MICHIGAN”

3. Proposals shall be opened and identified at 2:00 p.m. on July 26, 2021 in the Township
Hall.

4. The Township reserves the right to reject any or all responses to this RFP, to advertise for
new RFP responses, or to accept any RFP response deemed to be in the best interest of the
Township. The Township reserves the right to use its staff to complete a portion or portions of
the described activity and to negotiate rates per activity after bids have been received. A
response to this RFP should not be construed as a contract, nor indicate a commitment of any
kind.

Page 50 of 158



Dexter Township Master Plan

Timeframe & Estimated Costs

July 22, 2021

(i

B R j
Beckett&Raeder

Landscape Architecture
Planning, Engineering &
Environmental Services

mpire

EeE wn B
=y ‘3‘1 T
L ) ol ,

Kingsbury Parle | Defiance, Ohio

Page 51 of 158




Estimated Costs

Task ; Expense Hours Fee
TASK 1.0 PROJECT INITIATION & ORGANIZATION $30 45 $5,000
Kickoff meeting $15 8 $900
Document Review 10 $1,050
Tour of the Community $15 10 $1,125
Administrative Tasks 8 $1,000
History of Dexter Township 5 $525
Community Description 4 $400
TASK 2.0 COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT $90 122 $13,075
Community Survey 12 $1,250
Community Engagement Summary of Results 11 $1,125
Youth Engagement $15 9 $1,00
2 Scenario Workshops $30 60 $6,250
Planning Issues/Trends Workshop $15 18 $2,000
2 Steering Committee Meeting $30 12 $1,450
TASK 3.0 EXISTING CONDITIONS $45 98 $10,525
Social Characteristics $15 20 $2,100
Housing 20 $2,100
Physical Characteristics $15 14 $1,450
Land use Analysis 14 $1,450
Transportation and Circulation 12 $1,250
3 Steering Committee Meetings $45 18 $2,175
TASK 4.0 PLANNING ISSUES/TRENDS $15 20 $2,330
Summary of Issues and Opportunities $15 20 $2,330
TASK 5.0 POLICY AND IMPLEMENTATION $45 170 $18,480
Conflict Detection 8 $1,080
Zoning Plan 8 $1,000
Future Land Use Plan 8 $1,000
Zoning and Future Land Use Buiild Qut 20 $2,000
Update all Maps 75 $7,500
Goals and Action Plan with Metrics 26 $2,850
Ordinance Review 8 $1,000
3 Steering Committee Meetings $45 17 $2,050

Page 52 of 158



Estimated Costs

TASK 6.0 ADOPTION $1.000 88 $9,280
Draft Plan 56 $5,880
Plan Edits 8 $800
Noticing 6 $600
Final Public Hearing $15 8 $1,000
Deliverables to the City $1,000 10 $1,000

CORE PUBLIC SERVICES $1,225 543 $58,690
PROJECT EXPENSES $1,225
PROJECT NOT-TO-EXCEED $59,915
Additional In Person Meetings $500
Additional Virtual Meetings $375

Timeframe
MONTHS
1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 3] 14|15
Task 1: Project
Initiation &
Organization
Task 2: Community Engagement
Task 3: Existing Conditions
Task 4:
Planning
Issues/
Trends

Task 5: Policy & Implementation

I Task 6: Adoption

Page 53 of 158



(D

involve

Thank you.

Michelle Bennett, AICP
734.239.6614 | mbennett@bria2.com

R €)

B
Beckett&Raeder

Page 54 of 158



B R (i)
Beckett&Raeder

Landscape Architecture
Planning, Engineering &
Environmental Services

Dexter Township Master Plan

Proposal for Professional Services

July 22, 2021

\

Kingsbury Park | Deﬁ'& cé,hio

Page 55 of 158




(i)

innovative

Firm Introduction

Work Program

Experience, Qualifications & References

(Crommab s b s 1R Stz !

Timeframe & Estimated Costs Separate Document

Page 56 of 158




B R i
Beckett&Raeder

Landscape Architecture

Planning, Engineering &

Environmental Services
July 22, 2021

David Rohr

Director of Planning and Zoning
Dexter Township

6880 Dexter-Pinckney Road
Dexter, Ml 48130

Dear Mr. Rohr,

| am pleased to submit for your consideration a proposal for professional planning services
to prepare a Master Plan update for the Dexter Township community based on your RFP
objectives. We feel our team at Beckett & Raeder, Inc. (BRI) is expertly equipped with the
planning skills, resources, and experience needed to successfully serve the Township. BRI
works statewide but specializes in master planning for communities between 1,000 to
10,000 residents in semi-rural areas. For instance, BRI is proud to have completed the city of
Dexter’s Downtown Strategic Plan and implemented its streetscape.

Our dedication to great places, which are driven by great plans, began 55 years ago.
Master planning is a particular joy for Beckett & Raeder, Inc. Over the last ten years, our
team has won more Daniel Burnham Awards for a Comprehensive Plan from the Michigan
Chapter of the American Planning Association than any other planning firm in the state,
and it's because we take great pride in crafting unique documents that speak directly to
the communities they serve. In addition, because we serve as technical consultants to the
Michigan Economic Development Corporation’s RRC® program, we are attuned to best
practices for leveraging development and redevelopment that achieve a high degree of
alignment between its recent planning endeavors. BRI specializes in constantly finding ways
to redevelop key properties, connect resources, and advance sustainable development and
policies.

We prepared a Scope of Work that complies with the requirements of PA 33 of 2008, the
Michigan Planning Enabling Act (MPEA), and meets your plan objectives for a plan with clear
direction on how to develop in the short- and long-term, using community input, and a
growth management plan. If you have any questions, please contact me.

Sincerely, _
e
John R. lacoangeli, FAICP, PCP, LEED AP. CNU-A, FBC| Michelle Bennett, AICP
Principal Senior Associate, Project Manager

Page 57 of 158



(1)

investigate

Firm

Introduction

Page 58 of 158




Business Organization

Beckett & Raeder, Inc. is a Michigan
Corporation headquartered in Ann Arbor
with additional offices in Petoskey and
Traverse City, Michigan. The firm includes
landscape architects, planners, civil engineers,
LEED accredited professionals, and support
staff maintaining registrations in the States

of Michigan, Ohio, Indiana, and Illinois

and certification at the national level.

HISTORY

Beckett & Raeder, Inc. was established as a
Michigan corporation in 1966 with its corporate
office in Ann Arbor, Michigan.

SERVICES

Major areas of practice and scope of services
include sustainable design, land use programming
and analysis, master planning, campus planning,
placemaking, site planning and civil engineering,
site development, municipal engineering, storm
water management, downtown revitalization and
redevelopment, community planning and urban
design, economic development, public/private
development services, and environmental services.

OFFICERS

Deb Cooper; President

John lacoangeli, Executive Vice President / Treasurer
Christy Summers, Secretary

PHILOSOPHY

All commissions accepted by the firm are
accomplished under the direct supervision of
one of the firm’s six principals. Senior Associates,
Associates, Project Landscape Architects,
Planners, and Engineers are assigned to projects
in accordance with their individual expertise and
the requirements of the project. In keeping with
the philosophy of the office, the project team is
involved in all aspects of the work through its
entire duration. The firm routinely engages other
consultants, as the work plan requires.

LOCATIONS

Ann Arbor

535 W. William,
Suite 101

Ann Arbor, M| 48103
734.663.2622

Traverse City

148 E. Front St.

Suite 207

Traverse City, MI 49684
231.933.8400

Petoskey

113 Howard Street
Petoskey, MI 49770
231.347.2523

WEBSITE
www.bria2.com
Total Employees: 22

CONTACT
Michelle Bennett, AICP

Senior Associate
734.239.6614 | mbennett@bria2.com

Page 59 of 158




Professional Affiliations

Beckett & Raeder, Inc. is staffed by
registered professional engineers,
landscape architects, community planners,
and environmental and ecological
professionals who maintain specialized

training and professional affiliations.

ACCREDITATIONS

U. S. Green Building Coundil

LEED Accredited Professionals

Form Based Code Institute (FBCI)

Congress for the New Urbanism Accreditation (CNU-A)

CERTIFICATIONS

Michigan Economic Development Association
Certified Economic Development Professional
Certified Stormwater Operator

Housing Development Finance Professional (HDFP)
Project Management Boot Camp

PASER Road Rating

Planning and Zoning Instructor (MAP)
Certificate of Real Estate

Certified Playground Safety Inspector {CPSI)
American Institute of Certified Planners (AICP)
National Charrette Institute Certification (NCI)
Certified Park and Recreation Professional

REGISTRATIONS

Professional Registered Engineers
e State of Michigan (PE)

e  State of Ohio (PE)

Professional Landscape Architects

e State of Michigan (PLA)

e  State of Ohio (PLA)

e State of lllinois (PLA)

e State of Indiana (PLA)

e Council of Landscape Architects Registration Boards

Residential Builder License
e State of Michigan

SPECIALIZED TRAINING

EPA Brownfield Redevelopment
People, Places and Placemaking
Economics of Place
Neighborhoods, Streets and Connections
Form Planning and Regulation
Collabarative Public Involvement
Applied Placemaking

Complete Streets

Geographic Information Systems
FEMA 1CS-100, IS-00029, EFS 15
FEMA 1CS-200, 1S-00700 (NIMS)
Green Roof Design

Charrette System Training (NCI)

Page 60 of 158



Services

MASTER PLANNING
Campus Planning

Traditional Neighborhood &
Small Town Design
Community Master Planning
Watershed Planning
Recreation Master Planning
Park Master Planning

Rural Land Planning Services
Land Use Planning

COMMUNITY PLANNING

& ZONING

Comprehensive Master Plans Brownfield
Redevelopment

Zoning Ordinance /Codes

Specialized Zoning Ordinance

Provisions Development

Standards and Guidelines

Site Plan Review

Strategic Planning

Expert Witness Zoning Testimony

Community Development

Greenway Planning

New Urbanism

ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES

Site Evaluation and Analysis

Low Impact, Conservation Design

Wetland Delineation

Constructed Wetland Design &
Installation

Wetland Restoration

Storm Water Management

ANALYSIS & EVALUATION

Site Analysis

Feasibility Studies

Site Selection Studies

Buildout Analysis

Market Analysis

Demographics

Natural Features Interpretive Studies

PROJECT CONSTRUCTION
Construction Administration
Field Inspection

Storm Water Operator

Bridge Inspection

Specification Writing

Project Cost Estimating
Construction Drawings

DOWNTOWN & ECONOMIC

DEVELOPMENT

Brownfield Redevelopment

Grant Writing

Downtown Management

Downtown Master Plans

Special Finance Districts

Adaptive Reuse Studies

Retail Market Analysis

Strategic Planning/Visioning Workshops

Physical Design Plans

Streetscape Design & Implementation

Wayfinding & Signage

Tax Increment Financing & Development
Plans

DDA Creation

SITE DESIGN
Planting Design
Irrigation Design
Grading Plans

Utility Plans

Pavement Design
Lighting Design

Site Design Guidelines
Park Design

URBAN DESIGN
Corridor Design & Planning
Streetscape Design
Waterfront Design

FACILITY DESIGN
Marina Design
Playground Design
Athletic Facility Design
K-12 Site Development
Subdivision Design
Campgrounds

Parks Design

Higher Education

INFRASTRUCTURE
Storm Water Management
Wiater Distribution Systems
Sanitary Sewer Systems
Capacity Analysis

Capital Improvement
Program Wellhead Design & Protection
Pavement Evaluation
Streets and Roads

Onsite Sewage Treatment
Utility Marking

Parking

Page 61 of 158



Selected Recent Awards

MICHIGAN ASSOCIATION OF
PLANNING

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2021

City of Warren Master Plan
Warren, Ml

Planning Excellence Award for

Economic Development and

Planning, 2021

Comstock Center Place Plan for
Redevelopment and Prosperity

Township of Comstock, Ml

Planning Excellence Award for Public
Outreach, 2021

City of East Jordan Master Plan

East Jordan, Ml

Public Outreach Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2020
City of Sturgis Master Plan
Sturgis, Ml

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2019
Kalamazoo County Master Plan
Kalamazoo, Ml

Economic Planning and Development
Award, 2018
Project Rising Tide

Urban Design Award, 2018
Jackson Downtown Streetscape
Jackson, M

Best Practice Award, 2018
Planning for Resiliency in Michigan:
A Comprehensive Handbook

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2017
Trenton Resiliency Master Plan
Trenton, Ml

Urban Design Award, 2017
Jackson Blackman Park Expansion
Jackson, M

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2016
Jackson Community Master Plan
Jackson, Ml

Implementation Award, 2016
Bear River Valley Recreation Area
Petoskey, Michigan

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2015
Acme Township Master Plan
Acme, Ml

Innovation in Economic Planning &

Development, 2015

Lakes to Land Regional Initiative: Food
and Farm System Assessment

Innovation in Regional
Planning, 2014
Lakes to Land Regional Planning Initiative

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2013
Peshawbestown Master Plan
Grand Traverse Band of Ottawa
and Chippewa Indians

Daniel Burnham Award for a
Comprehensive Plan, 2010
Onekama Community Master Plan

Onekama, Michigan

AMERICAN SOCIETY OF
LANDSCAPE ARCHITECTS
Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,
2017, General Design

Chicago Drive Corridor

Grandville, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,

2017, Planning & Analysis

Peshawbestown Community
Master Plan

Peshawbestown, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,
2016, Landscape Architectural Design
Jackson Blackman Park Expansion,
Jackson, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,

2016, Landscape Architectural

Sustainability

Wall Street East Parking Structure,
Ann Arbor, Michigan

Page 62 of 158



Selected Recent Awards

Honor Award, Michigan Chapter,
2016, Landscape Architectural
Sustainability

Marshbank Park

West Bloomfield Township, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,
2015, Landscape Architectural Design
Munger Graduate Residences,

University of Michigan

Ann Arbor, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,
2014, Historic Significance
Petoskey Bayfront Park

Petoskey, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan Chapter,

2013, Planning & Analysis

River Raisin Heritage Corridor East Master
Plan

Monroe, Michigan

Merit Award, Michigan
Chapter, 2010

QOutdoor Learning Center
Central Michigan University
Mt. Pleasant, Michigan

MICHIGAN RECREATION & PARK
ASSOCIATION

Design Award, Outstanding Facility
2017

Silver Lake State Park

Mears, Michigan

Landscape Design Award, 2014
White Lake Bloomer Park
White Lake Charter Township, Michigan

Outstanding Park Design
Award, 2013

Argo Cascades

Ann Arbor, Michigan

Design Award, Landscape
Design, 2011

Bear River Valley Recreation Area
City of Petoskey, Michigan

Landscape Design Award, 2011
Marshbank Park
West Bloomfield Township, Michigan

Landscape Design Award, 2010
Outdoor Learning Center

Central Michigan University
Mount Pleasant, Michigan

IMAGIN (IMPROVING MICHIGAN'S
ACCESS TO GEOGRAPHIC
INFORMATION NETWORKS)
Innovation Award, 2018

Acme Township, Michigan

EDUCATION DESIGN SHOWCASE
Project of Distinction, 2017
Outstanding Design and Architecture

Lasch Family Golf Center, Michigan State
University
East Lansing, Michigan

NATIONAL TRUST FOR HISTORIC
PRESERVATION

Richard H. Driehaus National
Preservation Honor Award, 2014
McGregor Pool

Wayne State University

Detroit, Michigan

MICHIGAN HISTORIC

PRESERVATION NETWORK

Government/Institution

Award, 2016

River Raisin Heritage Corridor, East Master
Plan

Monroe, Michigan

Cultural Landscape Award, 2014
McGregor Memorial Conference
Center Reflecting Pool and Sculpture
Garden for Contribution to Historic
Preservation in Michigan

Wayne State University

Detroit, Michigan

GREAT LAKES PARK TRAINING
INSTITUTE

Great Lakes Park, Facility, &
Recreation Program Award, 2013
Marshbank Park

West Bloomfield Township, Michigan

WASHTENAW CONTRACTORS
ASSOCIATION

Pyramid Award, 2018

University of Michigan Art & Architecture
A, Alfred Taubman Wing

Ann Arbor, Michigan

OAKLAND COUNTY

Oak Land Award, 2012

Marshbank Park

West Bloomfield Township, Michigan

Page 63 of 158



(1)

imagine

Work Program

Page 64 of 158




UNDERSTANDING OF REQUEST

Dexter Township seeks to engage its staff and the public in an open, transparent way to develop a
community master plan with a strong emphasis on action steps phased over 5,10, 15, and 20 years. A
considerable part of the action steps will focus on how appropriate development and redevelopment
opportunities can achieve master plan goals. Building upon the work that was completed in 2011, BRI
will identify areas for improvement and areas for alignment, and where they are presently discernible
will propose how to incorporate them in the scope of work. To achieve this end, we are proposing a
master plan update process that:

‘i Offers numerous opportunities and avenues for residents, staff, officials, organizations, and
youth to engage;

i’ Updates all maps to GIS, planning trends, issues, and relevant data
i Offers a user-friendly and highly-graphical final deliverable

i Prepares an achievable action plan for the community’s prosperity with an emphasis on
growth management.

KEY ELEMENTS OF THIS PROCESS WILL INCLUDE:

Introduction

Community Description
Planning Issues and Trends
Social Characteristics
Physical Characteristics
Policies and Implementation

Page 65 of 1568



SUMMARY OF CHANGES FROM 2011 MASTER PLAN
i Youth engagement

(i Scenario planning workshops with the community with impact analysis for each
identified

‘i Demographic discussion that ties data to planning outcomes and action plan strategies

i) Housing analysis

‘i Expanded conversation on ecological health and flooding

i) Growth management designations

‘i Zoning and future land use build out analysis

‘1) Map of nonmotorized use (as opposed to nonmotorized infrastructure)

‘i1 Condensed and specific goals tied to metrics

‘i) An action plan with specified timeframes and accountable parties

(i Hyperlinked digital version of the master plan

(i) Attractive graphic representation of data and planning concepts

Page 66 of 158



Scope of Work

TASK 1: PROJECT INITIATION AND BACKGROUND

1.1 Kick-Off Meeting

Host a kickoff meeting to discuss the final work plan and any special considerations in the planning
process. We suggest the formation of a master plan steering committee, consisting of representatives from
elected officials, the planning commission, staff, local institutional, and business owners. This meeting will
also establish basic attitudes and priorities relative to the community outreach process and methodology.
As a part of the kick-off process, the BRI team will take a tour of the community with Township staff.

1.2 Existing Plans and Documents

Identify with the Steering Committee, existing community and economic development plans or projects
which will have a bearing on the direction of the project. Community planning documents will be reviewed
including the Zoning Ordinance, 2011 Master Plan, 2004 Washtenaw County Comprehensive Plan, Park &
Recreation Plans, Capital Improvement Plans, and surrounding community plans. We request access to GIS
parcel data for mapping and spatial analysis tasks.

1.3 Introduction and History
The content of this section is expected to stay the same, but the graphics will be updated.

TASK 2: COMMUNITY OUTREACH (2 STEERING COMMITTEE MEETINGS)

2.1 Community Survey

To build a longitudinal dataset, the survey questions from the previous master plan can be used to
understand how attitudes and priorities have changed over time. Any additional questions about
community preferences and behavior can be added. A survey postcard, announcing the survey with a link
to complete it, will be developed. The survey summary report will be shared with the Steering Committee.
The results will be scattered throughout the plan where relevant and the full results can be saved in the
appendix.

2.2 Youth Engagement

If our plans are future-oriented, then engagement should focus on what our youngest generation thinks.
BRI will coordinate with the school superintendent to work with up to three high school government
classes. Students are first educated on local government and planning, and then in small groups complete
the scenario workshop activities described in 2.3. This way, BRI can compare and share how adults and
teenagers view the Township’s future growth. Handouts can also be passed out to students bring to their
parents for other types of engagement.

2.3 Scenario Workshop

An in-person session will be held to further explore growth management strategies. During task 3.3, BRI
and the Steering Committee will identify areas suitable for growth and preservation. We will take the areas
deemed ready for “growth” to the community for a scenario planning exercise where the public uses
blocks that represent different land uses to build the designated areas according to their preferences. Once
we have collected their input, BRI will use that information to calculate the different scenarios’ impact to
the community in terms of vehicular trips generated, number of units built, number of people moving in,
etc. BRI proposes to come back to the public with the findings so they can learn from the exercise, refine,
and prioritize their desired scenario for each area in terms of density, height, setbacks, viewsheds, and
other site considerations. This information can be used to inform the Future Land Use Map.

Page 67 of 158



Scope of Work

During both the student and community scenario workshops, participants will also be asked broader
visioning questions so that a larger framework exists for future development decision-making.

2.4 Planning Issues and Trends Workshop

This workshop will be held with the Steering Committee to review the 2011 master plan’s discussion

of planning trends and issues. After BRI has completed most of the existing conditions analysis and
summarized the survey results, we will present a comparison of planning trends and issues between the
2011 plan and recently gathered input. At this session, the Steering Committee will identify areas to modify
and prioritize issues to tackle in the policy and implementation section.

TASK 3: EXISTING CONDITIONS (3 STEERING COMMITTEE MEETINGS)

3.1 Social Characteristics

Review the historic, existing, and forecasted demographic trends for the Dexter region. Create and/

or update all tables, graphics, and maps, including a demographic dashboard to determine community
prosperity indicators, using the most recent U.S. Census data for all variables currently discussed. A
demographic dashboard is a highly visual way to convey demographic trends in a digestible way for the
reader. BRI proposes to take this analysis one step further to elaborate on how these trends affect planning
and development. For example, an aging community may impact the type of development that is in
demand, and this trend should be used to explore new options in the policy and implementation section.

3.2 Physical Characteristics

Inventory and identify current and significant natural and cultural resources. Utilize GIS resources to map
these attributes for use in the planning process. Some areas for greater discussion are the ecological health
of wooded areas and climate variability’s impact on floodplains. This section will include an inventory of the
parkland in the Township. These maps will be used to determine areas shall be protected in their natural
state and how.

HOLD STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING TO DISCUSS SECTIONS 3.1 AND 3.2

3.3 Land Use Analysis

Evaluate existing land use patterns, present trends, and future desired development densities through
available data and land use information, utilizing all pertinent information, reports and studies on file,
current assessing data, geographic information databases, and other sources to determine which areas are
suitable for growth and/or preservation.

3.4 Housing Analysis

Housing is an urgent and controversial issue across Michigan. Population projections and migration
patterns will be reviewed with a particular focus on housing needs versus housing availability. Update
the existing housing analysis to include predictions for the type of housing units that will be needed
over the next 10 years for all income brackets and cost-burdened households and determine where it
makes sense to permit these housing formats.

Page 68 of 158



Scope of Work

HOLD STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING TO DISCUSS SECTIONS 3.3 AND 3.4

3.5 Transportation and Circulation .

Research and inventory of traffic volumes, road connectivity, nonmotorized systems, and problematic
intersections. Using popular workout apps, open source data can be used to map how often nonmotorized
paths are used. This information can be superimposed onto infrastructure to see if it supports
nonmotorized users. Maps will be generated that reflect up-to-date data from the Washtenaw County
Road Commission and a comparison drawn between the two years.

HOLD STEERING COMMITTEE MEETING TO DISCUSS SECTIONS 3.5 AND OUTSTANDING ISSUES

TASK 4: PLANNING ISSUES AND TRENDS (UP TO 2 MEETINGS)

4.1 Summarize Planning Issues and Trends

Develop this section based on the findings from the meeting with the Steering Committee, the existing
conditions research, community engagement, and best practices. This section will be condensed and
the issues will be placed in tiers in terms of urgency to be addressed, and then carried over into the
policy and implementation section.

TASK 5: POLICY AND IMPLEMENTATION (3 STEERING COMMITEE MEETINGS)

5.1 Conflict Detection

Identify and resolve any conflicts among Master Plan elements and state, regional, and neighboring local
plans for consistency. Prepare the final Land Use Plan maps, including any adjustments made through
conflict resolution and integration of Master Plan elements.

5.2 Zoning Plan

Pursuant to the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, a zoning plan and zoning map will address
recommendations relative to the number of zoning districts and relocation of zoning district boundary lines
based upon current land use and future growth projections.

5.3 Future Land Use Plan

Pursuant to the Michigan Planning Enabling Act, a final future land use plan and future land use map
will address recommendations based upon the overarching goals and objectives of the Plan and the
recommendations from the Land Use Plan Element.

5.4 Zoning and Future Land Use Build Out

BRI will update the zoning build out analysis, but will also extend it to include a build out analysis for the
proposed future land use categories. With both of them calculated, the community can get a better sense of
where the Township is now, and which direction it is headed, in terms of development.

5.5 Ordinance Review

A review of the zoning ordinance will be conducted relative to the goals, objectives, and strategies set forth
in this Master Plan. It is anticipated that recommendations for the ordinance review will be encompassed

in both the zoning plan and action plan, as any identified strategies for change will be included in these
actionable items.

Page 69 of 158



Scope of Work

5.6 Goals and Action Plan

The Steering Committee will refine and condense goals so that they are more specific and tied to metrics
to measure progress over time. Actions will be phased along a recommended timeline for completion,
emphasizing the first five years after adoption but going beyond that threshold to also incorporate long-
term change up to 20-years out. Actions can be laid out in a table or in a flowchart to depict next steps
should one action not provide the desired outcome.

TASK 6: PLAN ADOPTION

6.1 Final Report
Write the master plan in accordance with the 2008 Michigan Planning Enabling Act (MPEA). Summarize
public input, existing conditions, and a strategic framework. This will be produced using Indesign.

6.2 Public Review

Post the draft Master Plan and attachments in PDF format on the Township website for public review and
comment. Disseminate the draft Master Plan to adjacent municipalities, authorities, and boards as specified
in the MPEA.

6.